

www.simimonomini.com

Lead me from untruth to truth Lead me from darkness to light Lead me from death to Immortality

Brhadaranyaka Upanishad, 1, 2



All rights reserved. www.simimonomini.com

Kindly Read Disclaimers before read.

http://www.simimonomini.com/disclaimer.htm

# **Continuing Homeopathic Medical Education Services**

Series 7

A BRIEF MATERIA MEDICA OF SOME LESSER-KNOWN NOSODES



Compiled by,

Dr. K. S. SRINIVASAN,

For Centre for Excellence in Homœopathy,

Chennai – 600 080.

# CONTENTS

1.	Foreword	01
2.	What are these nosodes and their sources	02
3.	Anthracinum	05
4.	Colibacillinum	07
5.	Intestinal bacillus Dysenteriae	10
6.	Intestinal Bacillus Gaertner	12
7.	Intestinal Bacillus Morgan	14
8.	Intestinal Bacillus No. 7	17
9.	Intestinal Bacillus Sycoccus	19
10.	Intestinal Bacillus Proteus	21
11.	Lyssinum	23
12.	Malaria officinalis	26
13.	Malleinum (Hippozaenium)	30
14.	Monilia albicans (Candida albicans)	32
15.	Penicillinum	34
16.	Pyrogenium	38
17.	Streptococcinum	41
18.	Tuberculinum Denys	43
19.	Tuberculinum Marmorek	45
20.	Tuberculinum Residuum	47
21.	Vaccinotoxinum	49
22.	Variolinum	52
23.	Pathological Repertory of the Nosodes	54

#### FOREWORD

Nosodes are very important medicines in the homœopathic armamentarium. In fact one cannot function effectively without such Nosodes as *Tuberculinum, Medorrhinum, Psorinum* and of-late *Carcinosinum* to mention only few. We already have several good literature on the Nosodes and lot of information keep pouring in through the homœopathic journals reporting cures. However, there are several 'lesser' Nosodes, for example *Streptococcinum, Malaria officinalis* and the Bowel Nosodes which have a great role in our therapeutics, which lie in separate articles, pamphlets, etc. The French School has good literature on such Nosodes as *Tuberculinum Residuum, Denys, B.C.G.* The late Dr. O.A. JULIAN's Book is valuable in this regard.

Some years ago I came across a Materia Medica by Dr. Walter BUSCHAUER, wherein he has given on one page according to BOENNINGHAUSEN Method – Location, Sensation and Modality and on the opposite page according to KENT – Generals to Particulars. Depending upon the method one chooses to study the remedy which again depends upon the case before one, the information can be obtained. This small Materia Medica of twenty Nosodes before you is on this format. The information has been collected from JULIAN and Dr. BUSCHAUER.

A Pathological Repertory of the Nosodes drawn from Dr. JULIAN is also given.

A very important word of caution. One must study the remedy in different 'source' Materia Medicas before prescribing. This work is only an addition for quick reference and does not replace any extant work.

Feedbacks are requested.

August 2007

K.S. Srinivasan

#### WHAT ARE THESE NOSODES AND THEIR SOURCES

Nosodes are obtained from: Microbial cultures,

Viruses,

Antitoxic-serums or Vaccines,

Pathological secretions of a specific disease.

They are sterilised and potentized.

Auto Nosodes come from the same sick person to whom it is applied. Nosodes came into Homoeopathic Materia Medica during HAHNEMANN's time itself. HAHNEMANN reported the proving of *Psorinum* in **STAPF's Archiv 13 (1833) 3, 163-187**. Subsequently HERING (1800-1880) introduced many Nosodes. Samuel SWAN (1814 - 1893) made much contribution in this regard.

Nosodes are used as iso- or homoeo- therapeutically on the basis of their symptomsimilarity corresponding to the Law of Similars (as far as they have been proved and the remedy pictures thus obtained); also on their actual ætiology (e.g. *Pertussinum* in a patient who had suffered from Whooping Cough); their anamnestic history (e.g. *Pertussinum* in an asthmatic whose sufferings date back to a suppressed, apparently healed Whooping Cough).

Nosodes generally are applied in treatment of the chronically ill only in infrequent doses (as a rule, only once or twice during a treatment), only in (different) high potencies (30, 200, M) and only in combination with the appropriate homoeo-therapeutic medicine.

According to the French School a *Tuberculin* should never be employed without an earlier (three weeks) drainage so as to avoid an abrupt preliminary aggravation (toxin elimination crisis?).

The "drainage" remedies used by the French School are: *Berberis* (Kidney function remedy: *T.residuum*), *Bryonia* (Rheumatism: *T. residuum*), *Crataegus* (sudden, abrupt weakness: *T Denys*), *Ignatia* (Depression: *Tuberculinum*), *Nux vomica*, (Neurasthenia, sudden affections: *Tuberculinum*, *T. Denys*), *Pulsatilla* (variability: *Tuberculinum*, *T .Denys*, *T*.

*Marmorek*) *Rhus tox* (Fibrosis, rheumatic complaints: *T. Residuum*) *Solidago* (Kidney function remedy: *T. Marmorek, T. residuum*); where one of these remedies or homoeopsoric like *Arsenicum, Calcarea phosphoricum, Iodum, Kali carbonicum, Natrum muriaticum, Phosphorus, Sepia, Silicea* seem indicated, it points to, not seldom, a tuberculinic disease.

The most important Nosodes in "psoric", "syphilitic" or "sycotic" diseases are:

Anthracinum From the secretion of Anthrax Carbuncle		
Botulinum	Toxin of Clostridium Botulinum from spoiled Pork	
Brucella Melitensis Carcinosinum	Extract from cultures of different microbial stocks Believed to be from Carcinoma of breast.	
Colibacillinum	Lysates from different microbial stocks	
Diphtherinum	Diphtheria toxin	
Diphtherotoxinum	Filtered toxin of a di-bacilli culture	
Eberthinum	Bacteriolysate from cultures of many stocks of Typhoid	
Enterococcinum	Bacteriolysate cultured from different stocks of Enterococcinum	
Bacillus Morgan Bacillus Proteus Bacillus No.7 Bacillus Gaertner Bacillus Dysenteriae Bacillus Sycoccus Bacillus No.10 Bacillus Faecalis	Intestinal Nosodes of Paterson They are dilutions of bacterial cultures obtained from faeces inoculated with common cultures	
Gonotoxinum Influenzinum	Isotonic common salt suspension of Gonococci cultures From virus stocks (Singapore A.5 and A.P.R.8) without adding Alumen	

Influenzinum-nosodes (6)	by Dr. NEBEL, combination of many; but not available anymore
Leptospira	Lysate of Leptospira ictero -hemorragiae
Luesinum	From serous fluid of a Syphilitic Chancre
Lyssinum	From Saliva of a Rabid dog
Malandrinum	From the exudates of Malandra of horses untreated by antiseptics
Malaria officinalis	Vegetable Nosode from decomposed marsh-peat
Malleinum	Bacteriolysate from the nasal secretion of Glanders of horse
Medorrhinum	From purulent urethral secretion of different gonorrhoeal patients
Meningococcinum	Bacteriolysate from Meningococcal culture
Monilia Albicans	Bacteriolysate of a culture of Monilia albicans
Morbillinum	From buccopharyngeal exudate of an untreated Measles patient
Mucor Mucedo	Bacteriolysate obtained through isolation and transplanting the mushroom Mucor Mucedo from the culture medium in temperature of 25° C
Paratyphoidinum B	Bacteriolysate from Paratyphoid - B culture
Penicillinum	From the Na. Salt of Benzylpenicillin
Pertussinum	Bacteriolysate from the Sputum of an untreated Whooping Cough patient
Psorinum	From the purulent serum of an Itch vesicle of a patient suffering from Scabies
Pyrogenium	Fluid extract from putrified Beef rectified by alcohol precipitate
Scarlatinum	From desquamated Scabs of a Scarlet Fever patient
Staphylococcinum	Bacteriolysate of cultures of many stocks
Streptococcinum	Bacteriolysate of cultures of Streptococcus Pyogenus and Streptococcus Marcy 433, 434.
Strepto-entero-coccinum	Bacteriolysate of cultures of Strepto-entero-coccus or Enterococcus proteiformis (a species of Streptococcus faecalis) obtained from gingiva
Tuberculinum (Koch)	Glycerin extract of cultures of Human and Bovine sources
T. Aviaire	From cultures of Tubercle Bacilli of birds

T.Bacillinum (Burnett)	) From Tuberculous Sputa containing Koch's bacilli
T. B.C.G. Suspens	sion of live microbes from cultures of artificially attenuated stocks designated under this name by Calmette and
	Guerin
T. Denys	Broth filtrate of Tubercle Bacilli injected into a Porpoise
T. Marmorek From A T.Residuum	<b>nti-toxic serum</b> Glycerin emulsion containing water-insoluble principles of the Tubercle Bacilli
T. Spengler	Immune body obtained from the blood of an immunized Rabbit according to Spengler
Vaccinotoxinum	From Anti-variolic Vaccine
Variolinum	Microbial lysate from serous fluid of Small Pox pustules.

NOSODE	ANTHRACINUM	
ORGANOTROPY	Nervous system, Digestive organs, SKIN	
REGION/AFFECTION	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES
Digestive organs: (Acute Gastro-enteritis)	Hard, wood-like swelling of the parotids and sub-maxillary glands, with disposition to diarrhoea with liquid,	Right

# stinking stools

Skin:	On a localized INDURATION OF A
(Acne, Furuncle,	SUB-CUTANEOUS CONNECTIVE TISSUE,
Carbuncle, Panaritium,	A BLUISH-VIOLET, almost black VESICLE
Erysipelas,	develops, accompanied by intense BURNING
Phlegmone, Gangrene)	PAINS. The vesicle FORMS ULCER with
	SHARP, STINKING SECRETIONS. Transition
	as GANGRENE. Haemorrhages of thick, black,
	quickly decomposing blood. Rapidly becomes
	ΤΟΧΑΕΜΙΑ

#### ANTHRACINUM

Mind and Emotion:	Increased sensitivity. Anxiety conditions,
(Adynæmia, Delirium)	fears death of his near ones
General:	Rapid transition of (SKIN) - INFECTIONS WITH
(Septicemic prostration,	INTENSE BURNING PAINS, with FORMATION OF
Collapse)	ULCERS WITH SHARP, STINKING SECRETIONS
	in a SEPTICAEMIC CONDITION with emaciation
	and total <b>exhaustion</b> with thready pulse because of it. Carbuncles; malignant ulcers. Skin dry, burns and itches violently. Dissecting wounds, Insect stings
Side affected:	
Thermo-regulation:	High fever with anxiety states, delirium and fainting
Disposition to Perspiration:	
Thirst:	Much thirst
Desire for:	
Aversion to:	
Intolerance:	
Stool evacuation:	Diarrhoea, stinking
Urination:	
Sleep:	
Dreams:	
Sexuality:	
Menstruation:	Strength:
	Duration:
	Onset:

Leucorrhoea:

Stool:

# Fluid, stinking diarrhoeas

Urine:

Perspiration:

#### MODALITIES

Agg:

Amel:

NOSODE	COLIBACILLINUM	
	(and ANTI-COLIBACILLARY SERUM)	
ORGANOTROPY	NERVOUS SYSTEM, DIGESTIVE ORGANS,	
	URINARY and SEXUAL ORGANS	
REGION/AFFECTION	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES
Head:	Headaches, worse from	Mental
		excitement,
		Wet cold
Eyes:	ONE-SIDED SWELLING or	
	bloating of UPPER LIDS	
Digestive organs:	Tongue flabby, flat with yellowish-white	
(Chronic Cholecystitis,	coating. In the center of the tongue there	
Gastro-enteritis, Colitis)	is a red, smooth, flat line, without papillae.	
	Sensation of heaviness in stomach and	
	distention of the abdomen, worse after	Drinking milk
	SLOW DIGESTION	

## COLIBACILLINUM (and ANTI-COLIBACILLARY SERUM)

Mind and Emotion:	Fearfulness, irresolution,
(Depressive mental	sensation of emptiness in head. Every mental
diseases, Lassitude,	(and physical) exertion exhausts. Jumbles words.
Schizophrenia,	LOSS OF MEMORY with ANGUISH, IRRITATION.
Psychopathy)	Forgets events just occurred, confusion. Indecisive. Confuses
	one word for another.

General:	Poor organic resistance with increasing tiresomeness	
	and <b>weariness</b> ; general fatigue and depression which goes on aggravating with digestive and urinary troubles. Weakness, loss of appetite, undernourished and multiple gland inflammations	
	of children, youth and adults. SLOW DIGESTION.	
	Never well since an old urinary or intestinal trouble. Psychosis with dragging genito-urinary troubles.	
Side affected:		
Thermo-regulation:	Sensitivity to cold with chilliness, after eating	
Disposition to Perspiration:		
Thirst:		
Desire for:		
Aversion to:		
Intolerance:	Milk	
Stool evacuation:	Diarrhoea with dehydration	
Urination:	Painful sensation in kidney region, FREQUENT	

(Cystitis, Prostatitis)	URGING FOR URINATION. Passes small portion,	
	PAINFUL, WITH BURNING at the end of urination.	
	Kidney stones.	
Sleep:	Sleeplessness	
Dreams:		
Sexuality:		
Menstruation:	Strength:	
(Salpingitis, Metritis)	Duration:	
	Onset:	
Leucorrhoea:		
Stool:		
COLIBACI	LLINUM (and ANTI-COLIBACILLARY SERUM). Contd	
Urine:	CLOUDY, very OFFENSIVE; Haematuria.	
Perspiration:		
MODALITIES		
Agg:	FROM WET COLD	
	AFTER MEALS	
	From MILK	
	AT SEA SHORE	
Amel:	From WARMTH	
The therapeutic effects of Anti-Colibacillary Serum appears to be covered by Colibacillinum.		

NOSODE	INTESTINAL BACILLUS DYSENTERIAE	
ORGANOTROPY	NERVOUS SYSTEM, GASTRO-INTESTINAL, ARTERIAL VESSELS	
REGION/AFFECTION	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES
Head:	Headaches forehead, periodically	
(Migraine)	recurring every	8-14 days
Heart:		
Circulation:	Precordial diseases, with palpitation.	
Digestive organs:	Acute stomach pains, nights	
(Ulcus ventriculi	commencing between	12 and 1 o'clock
Pylorospasm)	better after abundant mucous	vomiting
	Spasmodic vomiting of infants	

#### INTESTINAL BACILLUS DYSENTERIAE

Mind and Emotion:	NERVOUS TENSION, ANGUISH, with fear		
	of events (anticipatory anxiety). Apprehensiveness.		
	Feels handicapped in crowd,		
during journey. Fear	closed places. Restless mind, apprehensive. Nervous stammering.		
General:	RESTLESSNESS, cannot sit quiet.		
	GASTRO-INTESTINAL and VASCULAR		
babies; Lips	SPASMS; pyloric spasms of		
	dry with fissures.		
Side affected:			
Thermo-regulation:			
Disposition to Perspiration:			
Thirst:			
Desire for:			
Aversion to:			
Intolerance:			
Stool evacuation:			
Urination:			
Sleep:			
Dreams:			
Sexuality:			
Menstruation:	Strength:		
	Duration:		

	Onset:
Leucorrhoea:	
Stool:	
Urine:	
Perspiration:	
	MODALITIES
Agg:	in crowd; during journey. 02-0300hrs.
Amel:	while eating

NOSODE	INTESTINAL BACILLUS GAERTNER	
ORGANOTROPY	Nervous system, DIGESTIVE	
REGION/AFFECTION	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES
Digestive Organs: (Paralytic, sub-ileus,	DIGESTION of fat DEFICIENT Worms. Constipation.	
Oxyuria)		

## **INTESTINAL BACILLUS GAERTNER**

Mind and Emotion:	Sensorial hypersensitivity, in	
	CHILDREN with	
General:	Physical deficiencies. Puny	
(Hypothrepsia, Coeliac	NUTRITIONAL DISORDERS with	
disease Atonic obstipation,	RETARDED DEVELOPMENT.	
llio-caecal tumour)	Restlessness of hands and feet. Nocturnal	
	fear in children. CANCEROUS	
	STATES OF OLD PERSONS	
Side affected:	Acetonaemia in children	
Thermo-regulation:		
Disposition to Perspiration:		
Thirst:		
Desire for:	Oat soup, cheese, eggs, milk, pudding, sugar and sweets	
Aversion to:	Bread, Butter, meat and Fish	
Intolerance:		
Stool evacuation:		
Urination:		
Sleep:		
Dreams:		
Sexuality:		
Menstruation:	Strength:	
	Duration:	
	Onset:	

(Erythrocyanosis)	haemorrhoids ,varicose veins, Lower	
Circulation:	VENOUS CONGESTIONS with	
	Periodic Migraine. Migraine at	onset of menses
		Excitement,
(Threatened Apoplexy)		Travel
(Migraine, Hypertension)		Thunderstorm
Head:	Headaches, with red face, periodic from	Warmth
REGION/AFFECTION	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES
ORGANS, <b>uro-genital-</b> SKIN	respiratory passages, DIGESTIVE organs,	locomotive organs,
	MUCOUS MEMBRANES of	
ORGANOTROPY	Nervous system, Circulation,	
	(and <b>B. MORGAN GAERTNER</b> )	
NOSODE	INTESTINAL BACILLUS MORGAN	
Amel:		
Agg:		
	MODALITIES	
Perspiration:		
Urine:		
Stool:		
Leucorrhoea:		

third of leg blue;	Chilblains of hands

## and feet

Respiratory passages:	CONGESTIONS of MUCOUS	
(Lobar Pneumonia)	MEMBRANES of naso-bronchi and	
(Lungs, Pleura)	lung particularly in CHILDREN;	
	Cer	vical adenopathy
Digestive organs:	Tongue dirty, bitter taste, pyrosis	
(Liver disorders)	Vomiting of mucous and gall.	
	Burning in stomach, throat, constipation,	
Joints:	itching anus, <b>haemorrhoids;</b> anal fissure. Arthrosis of knee, phalanges Nodosities of the fingers.	
	Soles painful.	
Skin:	Itching vesicles, worse in	Warmth
(Pruritis, Eruptions	ECZEMA of INFANTS itching skin during Der	ntition
Acrocyanosis)		

## INTESTINAL BACILLUS MORGAN (and B. MORGAN GAERTNER)

Mind and Emotion:	Restless, irritable; tense; dwells on his health;		
(Depressive Psychosis)	retreats from company; fear of crowd;		
	less restless when alone. Depressed, suicidal		
	disposition. Vertigo (in hypersensitive)		
General:	CONGESTION OF MUCOUS MEMBRANES and		
	ORGANS. LIVER DISORDERS with MIGRAINE.		
	SKIN ERUPTIONS, of INFANTS. GALL		
	BLADDER AFFECTIONS, GALL STONES		
	(B. MORGAN GAERTNER)		
Side affected:			
Thermo-regulation:	Heat flushes with CONGESTION OF HEAD		
	(in Menopause)		
	Feels hot at night		
Disposition to Perspiration	:		
Thirst:			
Desire for:			
Aversion to:			
Intolerance:			
Stool evacuation:			
Urination:	Kidney stones		
Sleep:			

Dreams:		
Sexuality:	Corrosive Leucorrhoea. Congestion of the Bartholin gland.	
	Pruritis of the Vulva.	
Menstruation:	Strength: CONGESTION OF OVARIES	with painful menses
(Dysmenorrhoea,		and migraine
Salpingo-Oophoritis)	Duration:	
	Onset:	
Leucorrhoea:		
Stool:		
Urine:		
Perspiration:		

INTESTINAL BACILLUS MORGAN (and B. MORGAN GAERTNER) Contd ....

#### MODALITIES

Agg:

From HEAT; night, THUNDERSTORM

From TRAVEL, EXCITEMENT

During ONSET OF MENSES

Amel:

NOSODE	INTESTINAL BACILLUS NO.7	
ORGANOTROPY GLANDS, HEART CIR	,	
GLANDS, HLART CIN	Digestive organs, Uro-genital organs	
·	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES
Heart:	Weak circulation	
(Hypotension, Bradycar	dia)	
Digestive Organs:	Distention of stomach	
(Gastric flatulence)		
Joints; Extremities:		
Lumbar pains.	Stiffness of the neck,	
Fibrosity of neck and	"cracks like a nut"	
Shoulders	Polyarticular pains of the back, of extr	remities,
	of the type of "old rheumatism".	

### **INTESTINAL BACILLUS NO.7**

Mind and Emotion:	MENTAL Weakness
General:	PHYSICAL Weakness
(Asthenia, Dysthyroidism)	Premature senility, worn out. Hypothyroidism
Side affected:	
Thermo-regulation:	
Disposition to Perspiration:	
Thirst:	
Desire for:	
Aversion to:	
Intolerance:	
Stool evacuation: Urination:	Scanty
Sleep:	
Dreams:	
Sexuality:	Impotence : Frigidity.
Menstruation:	Strength:
	Duration:
	Onset:
Leucorrhoea:	
Stool:	
Urine:	
Perspiration:	
	MODALITIES
Agg:	Cold, humidity; beginning of movement
Amel:	Heat, rest

NOSODE	INTESTINAL BACILLUS SYCOCCUS (SYCOTIC (	CO)
ORGANOTROPY MEMBRANES of the <b>re</b>	·	
<b>Urinary passage,</b> (fema MEMBRANES of the	passages, the gastro-intestinal canals, ale) genital organs,	SYNOVIAL
	joints, tendon sheaths; Blood : Skin	
REGION/AFFECTION	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES
Head:	Headaches; Perspiration of head	Nights
(Sinusitis, Tics)	Spasms of facial muscles, eye-lid	
	flutterings.	
	Pains of the frontal and maxillary sinuses.	
Respiratory passage:	Nasal and pharyngeal catarrh	Nights
(Adenoidal growths,	Enlarged tonsils, throat red, dry as if scalded.	
Bronchitis, Asthma)	Cough at about 2 a.m. with dyspnoea	
Digestive organs:	Nausea, after eating	Eggs
(Acetonemia,	Violent urging for stool on waking up.	
Gastro-enteritis in childrer	n.Stool soft corrosive, offensive smelling	
Liver insufficiency)		
Extremities:	Restlessness of the feet; Pain of the	
(Metatarsalgia, Chronic	metatarsus	Nights
deformity, Rheumatism)	Pains of the feet as if walking on	

# pebbles

## Painful swollen heels.

Skin:	Yellow, oily, vesicular eruptions,
(Eczema, Varicella,	on face, on the body. Warts on
Verruca)	skin/borders of mucous membranes

## **INTESTINAL BACILLUS SYCOCCUS**

Mind and Emotion:	EXCITABLE, sensitive, fear,	
	in darkness, or to be alone	
General:	GENERAL EXCITABILITY. Pale, swollen	
	face, yellow color, anaemic, gray hairs.	
	In women: hairs on face and on upper li	р.
	IRRITABILITY OF THE MUCOUS	
SYNOVIAL	MEMBRANES	MEMBRANES and
Side affected:		
Thermo-regulation:		
Disposition to Perspiration:	Perspiration of head	Nights
Thirst:		
Desire for:		
Aversion to:		
Intolerance:	Eggs	
Stool evacuation:	Violent urging on <b>waking up</b>	
Urination:	Burning while urinating	
(Urethritis, Cystitis)		
Sleep:		
Dreams:		
Sexuality:		
Menstruation:	Strength:	Ovarian pains, <b>Left</b>

(Adnexitis,	Duration:
Ovarian cysts,	Onset:
Cervicitis)	
Leucorrhoea:	Copious flow, yellowish, foetid, corrosive;
	Pruritis of the vulva
Stool:	Smooth, corrosive, offensive-smelling
Urine:	Albuminous
(Albuminuria)	
Perspiration:	
MODALITIES	
Agg:	
Amel:	

NOSODE	INTESTINAL BACILLUS PROTEUS	
ORGANOTROPY VESSELS; <b>Stomach, Joi</b> i		
REGION/AFFECTION	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES
Stomach: (Ulcus ventriculi)	Bloody vomiting, black stools	
Extremities:	SENSATION AS IF FINGERS NUMB	
(Raynaud's disease,	PAINS IN THE LEGS. Muscle cramps	
Intermittent Claudication)	Pains calves. Uses a stick to walk.	
	Pains of neck.	> pressure
Skin:	Eruptions, herpetic like. Swelling	
(Angio-neurotic oedema,	Very abundant sweat under arm falling	
Herpes)	in big drops with moist hands.	
of hand.		Oozing dermatitis on the back

## **INTESTINAL BACILLUS PROTEUS**

Mind and Emotion:	CHOLERIC, AGGRESSIVE CHARACTER. Nervous
(Hysteria, Psychopathy	tension with irritability of central and peripheral
in children, Epileptiform	nervous systems. Choleric, violent children, kick
convulsions, Spasms;	with the feet. Sudden violent attacks of bad temper.
Vertigo in Meniere)	Violent attacks of anger, hurls whatever things he has
	in his hands. Aggressive specially after over work. Vertigo.
	Vertigo increasing with the rising Sun. Convulsions, muscle spasms
General:	
Side affected:	
Thermo-regulation:	
Disposition to Perspiration	
Thirst:	
Desire for:	
Aversion to:	
Intolerance:	
Stool evacuation:	
Urination:	
Sleep:	
Dreams:	
Sexuality:	
Menstruation:	Strength:
	Duration:

	Onset:	
Leucorrhoea:		
Stool:		
Urine:		
Perspiration:		
	MODALITIES	
Agg:		
Amel:		
NOSODE	LYSSINUM (HYDROPHOBINUM)	
ORGANOTROPY passage, DIGESTIVE and	NERVOUS SYSTEM, <b>Respiratory</b>	
	URO-GENITAL-TRACT,	
	Joints, Skin	
REGION/AFFECTION	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES
Head:	Chronic headaches worse from the sight	
(Sun-stroke)	of or hearing sound of running	water,
	bright	light
Respiratory passage:	Barking cough. Cough while	swallowing water
(Spasmodic cough, Asthma	)	
Digestive organs:	COPIOUS SALIVATION, with <b>frothy</b>	
	Clumpy saliva, compelled to spit	
	continuously. Throat painful with	
	continuous desire to swallow. Constrictive	

	sensation in throat, when or in the course of	
	SPASMS OF THE ŒSOPHAGUS, when	
	swallowing fluids. SPASMS OF STOMACH,	
	with nausea and <b>vomiting</b>	
Joints:	Cramping pains of the hips, extending to sacrum	
(Lumbago, Coxarthrosis)		
Skin:	Blue discoloration, in injuries, wounds.	

## LYSSINUM (HYDROPHOBINUM)

Mind and Emotion:	Voice alters abruptly. Just now cheerful and
(Erotomania, Depression,	laughing, then suddenly sad, taciturn, bad temper.
Somnambulism, Delirium	GENERAL OVER-SENSITIVITY when looking at
tremens, Prog. Paralysis)	or hearing running water. FEAR OF WATER.
	Fear of bad news. Fear of becoming rabid.
	Fear of becoming crazy. Strange notions during
	pregnancy
General:	Restlessness, EXCITABILITY, HURRIED TALK.
(Epilepsy, Tetanic	CONVULSIONS from the SIGHT or the SOUND
convulsions convulsions	of RUNNING WATER, even from thinking of it.
of pregnancy Spasms)	SPASMS OF MUSCLES, respiratory passage,
	DIGESTIVE AND URO-GENITAL-TRACTS
Side affected:	
Thermo-regulation:	
Disposition to Perspiration	:
Thirst:	
Desire for:	Salt, Chocolate
Aversion to:	WATER
Intolerance:	
Stool evacuation:	Violent urging for stool, from the sight of water
	or hearing running of water
Urination:	Violent urging for urination, from the sight of

# or hearing of running water

Sleep:

Dreams:			
Sexuality:	SEXUAL EXCITEMENT from the sight of or		
(Testicular atrophy)	hearing running of water		
Menstruation:	Strength:	ANAPHRODISIA, with <b>prolapse of</b>	
(Vaginitis, Prolapse)	Duration:	uterus. Oversensitivity of the vagina	
	Onset:	which prevents coition	

Leucorrhoea:

### LYSSINUM (HYDROPHOBINUM) Contd ...

Stool:	Copious, watery, stools with abdominal pains	
	evenings	
Urine:	Scanty, cloudy, containing sugar	
Perspiration:		
	MODALITIES	
Agg:	From <b>thinking of running water or bright light</b>	
	From LOOKING at or HEARING RUNNING	
	WATER	
	From SHINING LIGHT	
	From HEAT OF SUN	
	From <b>travelling in cars</b>	
	From <b>bowing, stooping</b>	

Amel:

IN OPEN AIR

NOSODE	MALARIA OFFICINALIS	
ORGANOTROPY CIRCULATORY-ORGAN RESPIRATORY		MEMBRANES OF THE
	PASSAGES, DIGESTIVE ORGANS, LIVER,	
	SPLEEN, Urinary organs, <b>muscles,</b> Skin	
REGION/AFFECTION	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES
Head:	HEADACHES IN OCCIPUT, worse	nights
(Neuralgias)	from lying on the back or on the	left-side
Eyes:	Heavy, sleepy. Burning. Vision weak,	
	dulled. Pain inner angle	right
Ears:	Drawing pain, external ear	right
Heart-circulatory:	Palpitation, shaking, extending to neck while	leaning head
	SENSATION OF CHILLINESS,	on It hand
	from the feet, rising	
	up to the whole body	
Respiratory passage:	A constricted feeling at the root of nose.	
(Rhinitis, Bronchitis,	Yellow, blood-streaked secretion from	
Tuberculosis)	the posterior nares	mornings
	Burning pains in the chest; Burning in left	

	chest from	10 A. M.
	during the whole day, radiating	
	to the shoulder. RESPIRATION WEAK,	
	slow, shallow. HACKING, EXPLOSIVE	
	COUGH, from	talking, motion
Digestive organs:	Dry lips: feeling of dryness in mouth, despite	
(Enterocolitis, Infantile	viscid saliva. Toothache in upper jaw.	
Toxicosis, Hepatocolitis	Tongue coated, with brown line in center.	
Cholecystitis, Spleen	PEPPERY TASTE ON THE TIP OF TONGUE;	
tumour)	BITTER TASTE. Aversion to food. Will not	
	dare to eat, the thought of it sickens. Freque	nt
	pyrosis. Nausea. <b>Burning</b> and rumbling in the	9
	stomach and abdomen. PAINS, in umbilical	
	region, with sensation of heat and heaviness	
	in abdomen. PAINS, dull, throbbing, in right	
	upper abdomen, worse from	sitting, lying
	better from	slow walking

#### MALARIA OFFICINALIS Contd ...

Trunk and Extremities:	BACK AND LIMB PAINS, dull with feeling	
(Neuralgias)	of tiredness	
	Neck, painful	moving head
	Pains with paralyzed feeling of the arms,	
	hands. Lumbar ache as if it would break,	

radiating to the hips. Pain in the (external)	left
hip radiating into the leg. Pains drawing	
from knee to the neck without perspiration,	
better	lying
Dry, yellowish	

Skin:

### MALARIA OFFICINALIS

Mind and Emotion:	GENERAL SENSE OF EXHAUSTION,			
(Hypochondriasis,	Stuporous, loss of will as if paralyzed,			
Asthenia,	with sensation of pricking the whole body.			
Fever delirium)	Sighing, restless. Fear of becoming crazy.			
	FEVER-DELIRIUM, nights, towards morning,			
	sings and talks and finds no rest			
General:	PALE, WEAK, as after long illness.			
(Convalescence, after	Desires to stretch; to keep lying, not			
Malaria, Malta fever,	to be moved. HEADACHE, in OCCIPUT with			
Rheumatism, Anaemia)	VERTIGO and feeling UNWELL COLD SENSATION, ascending from			
feet to	the whole body. FEVER, periodical,			
	beginning at noon, night and towards			
	morning with fast pulse, with			
Thermo-regulation:	COLDNESS, first up in the hips and then			
	in the whole body; then			
Disposition to Perspiration: COPIOUS PERSPIRATION, worse from drinking				
Thirst:				
Desire for:	COLD DRINKS, SOUR THINGS, POTATOES,			
	BEEF STEAK			
Aversion to: Intolerance:	Loss of appetite			
Stool evacuation:	MORNING DIARRHOEA, BLOODY,			

<u>www.simimonomini.com</u> -© Centre for Excellence in Homoeopathy.

	Constipation no urge
Urination:	Scanty. Urination difficult, with false urging
Sleep:	RESTLESS, unrefreshing. Awakes tired, GIDDY
	Rolling sensation while falling asleep.
	Sleepy throughout the day, yawning
Dreams:	
Sexuality:	
Menstruation:	Strength:
	Duration:
	Onset:

Leucorrhoea:

### MALARIA OFFICINALIS Contd...

Stool:	DIARRHOEIC, BLOOD STREAKED, slimy	
	evacuations, 4 - 5 times daily. Constipa	ted
Urine:	Dark, like tea; ammoniacal smelling	
Perspiration:	PROFUSE PERSPIRATION, from least exe	ertion;
	of the back, lower half of the body,	
	on the flexional folds. Night.	
	MODALITIES	
Agg:	From MOTION	
	In CLOSED ROOM	From LEAST EXERTION

Amel:

# From REST

From HEAVY PRESSURE

From FRESH AIR

NOSODE	MALLEINUM (HIPPOZAENIUM)	
ORGANOTROPY	RESPIRATORY PASSAGE, Glands	
REGION/AFFECTION	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES
Respiratory passage:	Nose red, swollen. Nodules on the	
(Chronic Rhinitis,	wings of nose. CONGESTION and	
Sinusitis, Ozaena,	ULCERATION of the MUCOUS	
Laryngitis, Pertussis)	MEMBRANES. Secretions corrosive,	
	bloody, stinking. Hoarseness; brief,	
	irregular, noisy respiration,	
	ASPHYXIATION from profuse sputum	
Extremities:	Nodules in the muscles of the arm.	
	Swelling of the lymph glands	

# MALLEINUM (HIPPOZAENIUM). Contd.

#### Mind and Emotion:

General:	Marasmus in serious disease. Glandular		
	swellings, painful EAR, SUB-MAXILLARY-		
	SALIVARY GLANDS; lymphatic glands		
	Ozaena. Chronic Rhinitis. Bronchial Asthma.		
Side affected:			
Thermo-regulation:			
Disposition to Perspiration	ו:		
Thirst:			
Desire for:			
Aversion to:			
Intolerance:			
Stool evacuation:			
Urination:			
Sleep:			
Dreams:			
Sexuality:			
Menstruation:	Strength:		
	Duration:		
	Onset:		
Leucorrhoea:			

Stool:

Urine:

Perspiration:

MODALITIES

Agg:

Amel:

NOSODE	MONILIA ALBICANS (Candida Albicans)		
ORGANOTROPY gastro-intestinal canal SKIN. Joints.	MUCOUS MEMBRANES of the , (female,	external) GENITALS.	
	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES	
	LIPS DRY, COVERED WITH CRUSTS. MOUTH and TONGUE DRY, with		
Stomatitis aphthosa)	BLISTERS and WHITISH DEPOSITS. Tongue thick, furrowed, red or white		
	<ul><li>in the back part. Gums inflamed, bleeding.</li><li>Bad odour from mouth. Constipation, with</li><li>painful sensitivity particularly in caecal region</li></ul>	1	
Joints: Skin:	Joint pains ECZEMA, on the skin - and MUCOUS		
(Eczema, fissured, Intertrigo, Inguino-	MEMBRANES with LINEAR FISSURES: In the <b>axilla</b> , on <b>elbows</b> , on the inner and		
perinaelis)	outer <b>borders of hand</b> , between the <b>fingers</b> , under the breasts, on the navel, in the <b>folds</b>		
	of the buttocks, on the perineum, in the 4th interdigital space between the toes		
	Symmetric Eczema of the Thorax, arms and Forearms.		

Respiratory (Allergic Asthma)

.....

# MONILIA ALBICANS. Contd.

Mind and Emotion:

General: (Dermatomycosis,	ECZEMA WITH LINEAR FISSURES ON THE SKIN and FOLDS OF MUCOUS MEMBRANES; MOUTH
Stomatitis,	APHTHOUS, WITH LIPS COVERED BY CRUSTS
Vulvo-vaginitis)	INFLAMMATORY IRRITATION OF VULVA AND
	VAGINA, ITCHING, MOIST, PUSTULOUS;
	mostly after anti-biotic therapy
	Dermatosis after antibiotics
Side affected:	
Thermo-regulation:	
Disposition to Perspiratior	
Thirst:	
Desire for:	
Aversion to:	
Intolerance:	
Stool evacuation:	
Urination:	
Sleep:	
Dreams:	
Sexuality:	ITCHING, REDDENING, SWELLING of VULVA and VAGINA; BLISTERS,
	moist, suppurative
Menstruation:	Strength:
	Duration:

www.simimonomini.com - C Centre for Excellence in Homoeopathy.

Onset:

Le	ucc	orrł	noe	a:
LC	acc		ioc	u.

Stool:

Urine:

Perspiration:

M	0	DA	۱L	IT	IES
•••	-			•••	

Agg:

Amel:

NOSODE	PENICILLINUM	
ORGANOTROPY	Nervous system, MUCOUS	
MEMBRANES of the <b>e</b>	<b>yes</b> ; Ears; of	the <b>RESPIRATORY</b>
PASSAGES,	DIG	ESTIVE ORGANS; Heart-
	circulatory-organs	s. KIDNEYS,
	(female) <b>Sexual organs</b> , M	1USCLES,
	JOINTS, SKIN.	
REGION/AFFECTION	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES
Head:	Heavy, with unwell feeling, worse from	motion
(Neuralgia)	with intensive, general feeling of chill.	
	Pain forehead, above and behind.	right
Eyes:	Eye; SWELLING OF LIDS; more in the	
(Oedema, Conjunctivitis	lower lids. Conjunctival irritation, puffy	

Hordeola)	agglutinated eyelids in	morning
	Lachrymation; stye developing	slowly

Ears:	FURUNCLE and ECZEMA of auditory	
(Otitis externa)	meatus, with slimy-suppurative secretions.	
	Tinnitus aurium.	
Heart:	Pains over the heart (precordial), worse on	waking up
(Carditis)	Palpitation, irregular heart beat, fast pulse.	
	Extrasystoles	
Respiratory passages:	Coryza with slimy, or thick yellow	
(Rhinitis, Sinusitis,	discharge. Pains over the chest.	
Laryngitis, Bronchitis	Hoarse, DRY COUGH which occur	paroxysmally
Asthmatica)	and which compels the patient to	
	twist and bend, better from	rest.
	Cough with yellow or whitish-yellow,	
	thick expectoration, ASTHMATIC AIR	
	HUNGER around	4 A.M.

### PENICILLINUM Contd...

Digestive organs:	MUCOUS MEMBRANE OF MOUTH RED,	
(Stomatitis aphthosa,	with WHITISH FLECKS and gum-bleeding.	
Gingivitis,	TONGUE coated BROWN-YELLOW, with	
Angina gastritis)	clear imprint of teeth. Small papules on the	
	borders of the tongue. PAINS, particularly	
	in the <b>incisors</b> - TEETH and the <b>right upper</b>	
	canine teeth, with radiation to the right antrum	
	of Highmore. Pharyngeal areola red with swelling	
	and coated tonsils. Spasmodic pains over the	
	stomach and around the navel	
Trunk and Extremities:	JOINT PAINS, with OEDEMAS, worse from	motion
(Polyarthritis, Nephritis)	MUSCLE PAINS with weariness from	
	least	motion
	Pains in the lumbar regions,	
	Joints cold, as if numb, stitching	
Skin:	Sweaty skin, OEDEMA, in FACE.	
(Eczema, Urticaria)	ERUPTIONS which secrete clear, flowing	
	secretion. FURNUCLE, warts	

# PENICILLINUM

Mind and Emotion:	FEELING OF WEAKNESS with mental
(Adynamia, Somnolence)	depression. Feels well only in lying
	position; any exertion difficult
General:	Changing infectious conditions. APHTHAE of
(Infectious diseases	GUMS with TOOTH ACHES, with BROWN
Polyarthritis,	TONGUE. CATARRH of MUCOUS
Chronic Reticulo-	MEMBRANES with slimy-suppurative secretions.
Endotheliosis)	ECZEMA, FURUNCLE, Warts. JOINT and
LIGHTENING PAINS	MUSCULAR PAINS.
	worse from motion, accompanied by stitches
	under the skin. ALBUMINURIA WITH
	OEDEMA
Side affected:	RIGHT
Thermo-regulation:	CHILLINESS, SUB-FEBRILE STATE,
	continuous fever 38° evenings,
	remaining for long time
Disposition to Perspiration	: Hot or cold sweat, of stale odour
Thirst:	
Desire for:	
Aversion to:	
Intolerance:	

Stool evacuation:	Constipation without urge
Urination:	Scanty. Kidney pains both sides,
(Nephritis Nephrose)	which radiate to hips
Sleep:	Deep, or restless; wakes at 2 hours with
	uneasiness; vertigo, worse from motion
Dreams:	
Sexuality:	
Menstruation:	Strength: Weak
	Duration:
	Onset: Late
Leucorrhoea:	Discharge, yellow or white, not irritative

# PENICILLINUM Contd...

Stool:	Constipated
Urine:	Scanty, albuminous
Perspiration:	Hot or cold sweat, of stale odour
	MODALITIES
Agg:	AT 4 hours
	From WET COLD
	From MOTION
Amel:	From REST
	From DRY, WARM WEATHER

NOSODE	PYROGENIUM		
ORGANOTROPY Nervous system, HEART- CIRCULATION, Respiratory passages,			
	Digestive organs, Uro-genital-tract,		
	Trunks and Joints, SKIN		
REGION/AFFECTION	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES	
Head:	Violent congestion of blood to		
(Meningitis,	head, with throbbing in the temples,		
Mastoiditis)	better from	pressure	
	Throbbing in head and in the ears,		
	Pressing <b>headaches,</b> in occiput, in		
	the <b>eyeballs</b> , worse from	cough	
Face:	Pale, dark rings below the eyes.		
	Burning cheeks; trembling,		
	twitching alae nasi		
Heart-circulation:	Consciousness of his heart.		
	Heart weakness, palpitation		
	Pulse rapid, small, thready not in		
	proportion to the temperature		
Respiratory passages:	Cough, with copious expectoration		
(Empyema, Lung abscess,	of stinking mucous worse from	motion	
Gangrene)	in	warm room	

<u>www.simimonomini.com</u> -© Centre for Excellence in Homoeopathy.

	While coughing, taste, like pus	
Digestive organs:	Tongue red, as if varnished dry,	
(Infantile enteritis,	Fetid taste. Teeth dirty yellow	
Cholecystitis, Septic	coated. Abdomen distended, tense,	
Appendicitis, Typhus,	sensitive and painful	
Cholera, Anal Fissure)		
Trunk and Joints:	Feels as if whole body beaten. As if bones	
	have been broken. Numbness of the joints	
Skin:	Cold, livid, covered with cold clumpy	
(Furuncle, Phlegmonous,	stinking sweat. Stinking ulcers in	old people
Abscesses, Panaritium,		
Decubital ulcers,		
Ulcera varicosa)		

#### PYROGENIUM

Mind and Emotion:	High grade EXHAUSTION WITH
(Encephalitis)	RESTLESSNESS. Bed feels too hard;
	must continuously move to ease the painful
	parts. Mentally irritable, loquacious. Thinks
	that he is another person when turning on
	the other side in bed. Delusions about the
	position of parts of his body
General:	GENERAL INFECTIOUS SEPTIC STATE, with
(Septicaemia, Pyaemia,	DIVERGENCE OF PULSE AND TEMPERATURE,
Puerperal toxicosis,	oppression of heart and RESTLESSNESS. Putrid,
Grippe, Gastro- intestinal	cadaverous odour of the body, the breath, the perspiration.
Grippe, Gastro- intestinal Tuberculous cavity)	<b>cadaverous odour</b> of the body, the <b>breath</b> , the <b>perspiration</b> . Bruised, sore pains all over the body. STINKING
	Bruised, sore pains all over the body. STINKING
Tuberculous cavity)	Bruised, sore pains all over the body. STINKING
Tuberculous cavity) Side affected: Thermo-regulation:	Bruised, sore pains all over the body. STINKING EXCRETIONS. Local tendency to suppuration and lymphangitis
Tuberculous cavity) Side affected: Thermo-regulation:	Bruised, sore pains all over the body. STINKING EXCRETIONS. Local tendency to suppuration and lymphangitis Oscillating Fevers. Periodical chilliness, about 19 hours. <b>Fever</b>
Tuberculous cavity) Side affected: Thermo-regulation: Disposition to Perspiration:	Bruised, sore pains all over the body. STINKING EXCRETIONS. Local tendency to suppuration and lymphangitis Oscillating Fevers. Periodical chilliness, about 19 hours. Fever with copious cold, sticky, stinking perspiration
Tuberculous cavity) Side affected: Thermo-regulation: Disposition to Perspiration:	Bruised, sore pains all over the body. STINKING EXCRETIONS. Local tendency to suppuration and lymphangitis Oscillating Fevers. Periodical chilliness, about 19 hours. Fever with copious cold, sticky, stinking perspiration For fresh water, (which would however be

Desire for:

Aversion to:

Intolerance:

Stool evacuation:	Stinking diarrhoea. Brown or black stools,
	with involuntary passage of wind.
	Constipation with dry, black, carrion-like
	stinking stools
Urination:	Tormenting urge for urination (Bladder tenesmus)
Sleep:	Restless; crying out from oppression of chest,
	with choking sensation
Dreams:	Anxious dreams
Sexuality:	

PYROGENIUM Contd....

Menstruation:	Feverish.
(Puerperal Fever,	STINKING MENSTRUAL BLOOD
Metrorrhagia,	Uterine bleeding, black, stinking.
Abscesses of Mammary	
Glands)	Lochia stinking, brown, with chilliness,
	fever, sweat.
Leucorrhoea:	
Stool:	Carrion-like stinking, diarrhoeic, brown

or black, dry.

Urine:	Scanty, dark colored. Albuminuria with
	Cylinders. Urine of putrid smell.
Perspiration:	Stinking sweat, copious, cold, clammy
	MODALITIES
Agg:	From PROGRESSIVE MOVEMENTS From TOUCH
Amel:	From WARMTH (WARM ROOM, WARM BED,
	WARM DRINKS)
	From change of position in lying

NOSODE	STREPTOCOCCINUM	
ORGANOTROPY	NERVOUS SYSTEM, Eyes, Ears,	
	HEART-CIRCULATION, Digestive organs,	
	Trunk and Joints, Skin.	
REGION/AFFECTION	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES
Head:	VIOLENT HEADACHES, as if the	
(Migraine)	head would split	
Eyes:	Weak vision, must wear spectacles.	
(Glaucoma)	Vision disturbances, with increased	
	pressure of eyes. Uveitis	
Ears:	Ear pains, while	lying on left
(Tinnitus)	Intermitting murmurs in the right ear.	
Heart-circulation:	FEELING OF WEAKNESS OF HEART,	
(Cardialgia, Endo-,	Pains over the heart,	
Myo-Pericarditis)	spasmodic in the apex	
Digestive organs:	Lips taste salty. Tip of tongue red,	
(Alveolar Pyorrhoea,	tongue coated, peels from front to	
Red Angina, Spasms	back. Gums inflamed, painful,	
of oesophagus,	suppurating. Pains of salivary	
Gastritis)	ducts, after the meal, beginning	suddenly
	radiating to back. Dull pains over	
	the stomach, cannot tolerate	

www.simimonomini.com -© Centre for Excellence in Homoeopathy.

	weight of the hand.	while lying
	Inclination to vomit with vertigo	
	and vomit of greenish gall	
Trunk and Joints:	Swelling of the lower limbs. Chronic	
(Oedema, Acute	oedema of lower limbs. Reddening,	
Polyarthritis,	swelling and pains of the joints.	
Synovitis)	Pain in the clavicle. Pain in vertebral column.	
	Sensation of vibration in the	
	vertebral column, in the body	
	while lying stretched, in the legs from	stamping
Skin:	Scarlet fever-like Erythema,	
(Erythema, Eczema	with excoriations. Hair falling	
Dry, Desquamating, Alopecia)	from head Repeated Eczema.	

# STREPTOCOCCINUM

Mind and Emotion:	ILL HUMOUR WITH WEEPING without
(Hallucinogenic	reason, with HALLUCINATIONS VISUAL
psychotics,	AND HEARING and VIOLENT HEADACHES.
Enchephalitis)	Hears call for help. Sees the room completely
	flying. Fears going crazy. Manic depressive condition.
	Fear Cancer. Submissiveness
	Sensation of vibrations of body. Vertigo while
	rising up and lying down.
General:	OVER SENSITIVENESS FOR NOISE, LIGHT,
	DRAFT. Much debility, suppurations, Relapses (See R.E.S. HAYES in the Hom. Rec. July 1952). Infectious conditions with Leucopaenia and Proteinuria.
Side affected:	
Thermo-regulation:	
Disposition to Perspiration:	
Thirst:	
Desire for:	
Aversion to:	
Intolerance:	
Stool evacuation:	
Urination:	
Sleep:	Nightmares in sleep
Dreams: Sexuality:	Dreams of disputes, quarrels
Menstruation:	Strength:

	Duration:	
	Onset:	
Leucorrhoea:		
Stool:		
Urine:		
Perspiration:		
Agg:	MODALITIES From NOISE	
	From LIGHT	
Amel:	From DRAFT	
NOSODE	TUBERCULINUM DENYS	
ORGANOTROPY organ, RESPIRATORY Skin	· · ·	DIGESTIVE ORGANS,
REGION/AFFECTION	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES
Head:	HEADACHES, which <b>commence</b>	
(Migraine)	suddenly, remain for hours	
	or day-long, or for days and	
	suddenly pass off	periodically
	recur suddenly at irregular intervals with	
	(or without) <b>fever</b>	
Heart-circulation:	Pains, stitching, over the heart, after	exertion
www.simimonomini.com	-© Centre for Excellence in Homoeopathy.	Page 60

(Hypotension,	Feeling of weakness and unwell feeling	
Acrocyanosis)		
Respiratory passages:	COLD with mild, non irritating	
(Rhinitis, Allergic	WATERY SECRETIONS and	
Laryngitis,	hoarseness comes	suddenly
Bronchitis, Asthma	and pass off	suddenly,
with Plethora)	recurring	periodically
more on	Cough; Dyspnoea, from congestion	<b>Pains, in the ribs and nipples,</b> right
Digestive organs:	STOMACH DISORDERS, paroxysmally,	
(Gastritis, Enterocolitis)	with vomiting. Irritation of appendix	
Skin:		
Skill.	Skin eruptions, moist, pustules	

# **TUBERCULINUM DENYS**

Mind and Emotion:	PAROXYSMAL OCCURRENCE of DEPRESSION,
(Depression)	together with <b>feeling of weakness</b> and
	accompanying physical symptoms, in apparently
	healthy persons
General:	Blooming appearance. Red, congested face.
(Asthenia,	SUDDENLY OCCURRING functional or organic
Tuberculinic,	disturbances, of variable duration, which
Tuberculinic fibrosa)	DISAPPEAR SUDDENLY and RECUR
intervals	PERIODICALLY in irregular
Side affected:	
Thermo-regulation:	FEVER from least exertion, suddenly commencing
	with severe exhaustion and prostration
	with severe exhaustion and prostration
Disposition to Perspiration	
Disposition to Perspiration Thirst:	
Thirst:	
Thirst: Desire for:	n:
Thirst: Desire for: Aversion to:	n:
Thirst: Desire for: Aversion to: Intolerance:	Loss of appetite, occurring paroxysmally
Thirst: Desire for: Aversion to: Intolerance:	Loss of appetite, occurring paroxysmally DIARRHEA, coming on paroxysmally,
Thirst: Desire for: Aversion to: Intolerance: Stool evacuation:	Loss of appetite, occurring paroxysmally DIARRHEA, coming on paroxysmally,
Thirst: Desire for: Aversion to: Intolerance: Stool evacuation: Urination:	Loss of appetite, occurring paroxysmally DIARRHEA, coming on paroxysmally,

Menstruation:	Strength:	
	Duration:	
	Onset:	
	Onset.	
Leucorrhoea:		
Stool:	WATERY, <b>soft</b> , frequent STOOLS	
Urine:		
Perspiration:		
MODALITIES Agg:	PAROXYSMAL; SUDDEN; PERIODIC/	ALLY RECURRING.
	From LEAST EXERTION	
Amel:	From REST	
NOSODE	TUBERCULINUM MARMOREK	
ORGANOTROPY	Nervous system, HEART-	
ORGANOTROPY CIRCULATORY-ORGAN	S; MUCOUS	MEMBRANES of respiratory sages, Digestive organs, Bones,
	S; MUCOUS pas Joints, Mu	sages, Digestive organs, Bones, scles, Kidneys, serous
	S; MUCOUS pas	sages, Digestive organs, Bones, scles, Kidneys, serous
CIRCULATORY-ORGAN	S; MUCOUS pas Joints, Mu	sages, Digestive organs, Bones, scles, Kidneys, serous
CIRCULATORY-ORGAN	S; MUCOUS pas Joints, Mu membranes, SKIN	sages, Digestive organs, Bones, scles, Kidneys, serous
CIRCULATORY-ORGAN	S; MUCOUS pas Joints, Mu membranes, SKIN SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	sages, Digestive organs, Bones, scles, Kidneys, serous

(Hypotony, Erethism,

Cardiac neurosis)

Chest/Respiration:	Thorax, diffused painful, also from	percussion
(IC - neuralgias,	Pains in the axillae and inter-costal	wandering
Laryngitis,	Pains in the axilla with SWELLING	
Bronchitis,	OF GLANDS IN THE AXILLA.	
Pleuritis,	Hoarseness, Cough. Pains in the	
Lung congestions)	apex of lungs	
Digestive organs:	Red, dry lips, crusts in the corners of the	
(Demineralisation;	mouth. Dry mouth. Dry, red, smooth,	
Anorexia; Nervous	shining tongue. Toothaches, wandering	
Dyspepsia; Spastic	LOSS OF APPETITE. Constipation with	
Obstipation, Peritonitis)	urge	
Trunk and Joints:	Suddenly commencing joint pains, after	exertion
Trunk and Joints:	Suddenly commencing joint pains, after (Tbc. Rheumatoid, bone Tbc., with <b>muscle</b>	exertion
Trunk and Joints:		exertion
Trunk and Joints:	(Tbc. Rheumatoid, bone Tbc., with <b>muscle</b>	exertion
Trunk and Joints:	(Tbc. Rheumatoid, bone Tbc., with <b>muscle</b> cramps, joint pains and fistulous bone	exertion
Trunk and Joints:	(Tbc. Rheumatoid, bone Tbc., with <b>muscle</b> <b>cramps, joint pains</b> and fistulous bone development <b>subfebrile temperatures</b>	exertion
Trunk and Joints: Skin:	(Tbc. Rheumatoid, bone Tbc., with <b>muscle</b> <b>cramps, joint pains</b> and fistulous bone development <b>subfebrile temperatures</b>	exertion
	(Tbc. Rheumatoid, bone Tbc., with <b>muscle</b> <b>cramps, joint pains</b> and fistulous bone development <b>subfebrile temperatures</b> pains)	

Erythrocyanosis, Chilblains,

Boeck's Pityriasis Rosea)

### TUBERCULINUM MARMOREK

Mind and Emotion:	Cheerful, restless, oversensitive, IRRITABLE
(Hypersensitivity, Asthenia	
General:	APPETITE LESS, THIN, pale, restless,
(Tuberculinic;	erethetic (more likely, young) tuberculinic
<b>Bone-, Peritoneal-,</b> Kidney- <i>,</i> tbc)	who are inclined to suffer from feverish conditions, HYPOTONIC CIRCULATORY
	DISTURBANCES and severe constipation.
	DRYNESS OF MUCOUS MEMBRANES
	and SKIN. SWELLING OF LYMPHATIC
	GLANDS of the <b>axilla</b>
Side affected:	
Thermo-regulation:	
Disposition to Perspiration:	
Thirst:	
Desire for: Aversion to:	LOSS OF APPETITE
Intolerance:	
Stool evacuation:	Constipation, without urge
Urination:	
Sleep:	Sleeplessness of school children; they
	are late in going to sleep
Dreams:	
Sexuality:	
Menstruation:	Strength:

	Duration:
	Onset:
Leucorrhoea:	
Stool:	Hard, dry stools.
Urine:	
Perspiration:	
MODALITIES Agg:	From MENTAL EXERTION From PHYSICAL EXERTION like LONG WALKS
	BEFORE MENSES
Amel:	From REST

# NOSODE

ORGANOTROPY Respiratory organs, H sheaths, JOINTS, Connect	eart-circulatory-	organs, tendon
	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES
Respiratory organs: (Tuberculinic fibrosa,	Respiratory ailments	
Pleuritis sicca) Digestive organs: (Chronic fibrous	Abdominal ailments, digestive disorders	
adhesive Peritonitis)		
Trunk and Joints: (Spondyloarthritis,	Stiffness of the joints, on not influenced by atmospheric variations.	waking up,
Arthrosis, Ankylosis,	Drawing PAINS IN THE JOINTS, worse while at	rest.
Heberden's Nodes)	Tendon sheaths inflammations, with consequential deformities of the joints,	
	ankylosis and arthrosis. Stiffening of the spine; arthrosis of thumb base joint.	
Skin: (Acne Conglobata)	Nodes in the fingers Dry skin, scanty perspiration. Nodes in the shoulders and back	

# TUBERCULINUM RESIDUUM

Mind and Emotion:

General:	Dele grou comployion, bright rod line,
General:	Pale, gray complexion; bright-red lips;
	mostly the lower lip cracked in its entire length.
	Thin, despite good appetite. JOINT PAINS,
	PERIODICALLY occurring, afebrile recurrence
	of FIBROUS INFLAMMATIONS of SEROUS
	MEMBRANES and JOINTS. TENDENCY OF
	PROGRESSIVE STIFFNESS OF JOINTS
Side affected:	
Thermo-regulation:	
Disposition to Perspiration	: Scanty perspiration
Thirst:	
Desire for:	
Aversion to:	
Intolerance:	
Stool evacuation:	
Urination:	Scanty, offensive smelling
Sleep:	
Dreams:	
Sexuality:	
Menstruation:	Strength:
	Duration: Drawing pains in the lower abdomen
	Onset:
Leucorrhoea:	

Stool:		
Urine:	Scanty, offensive smelling	
Perspiration:		
MODALITIES		
Agg:	From REST	
	From MOTION, GYMNASTICS	
Amel:		
NOSODE	VACCINOTOXINUM	
ORGANOTROPY	CNS, PERIPHERAL NERVES, MUCOUS	
	MEMBRANES of the EYES, NOSE,	
	respiratory passages, gastro-intestinal	
	tract. SKIN, supporting tissues	
	tract. SKIN, supporting tissues	
REGION/AFFECTION	tract. SKIN, supporting tissues SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES
	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	
Head:	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION Pains and heat in the forehead, in	MODALITIES morning hours
	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION Pains and heat in the forehead, in as if the forehead would burst.	
Head:	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION Pains and heat in the forehead, in	
Head:	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION Pains and heat in the forehead, in as if the forehead would burst.	
Head:	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION Pains and heat in the forehead, in as if the forehead would burst. Stitching as from needles, in	morning hours
Head:	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION Pains and heat in the forehead, in as if the forehead would burst. Stitching as from needles, in both temples. In the	morning hours
Head:	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION Pains and heat in the forehead, in as if the forehead would burst. Stitching as from needles, in both temples. In the With the sensation of numbness.	morning hours right temple
Head: (Headaches)	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION         Pains and heat in the forehead, in         as if the forehead would burst.         Stitching as from needles, in         both temples. In the         With the sensation of numbness.         Bursting pains in forehead and eyes	morning hours right temple

(Conjunctivitis,	Pains in the eyes and orbits, bursting.	
Blepharitis, Iritis,	Stitching in the inner canthus	left
Keratitis)	Vision disturbances; in the mornings,	
	as if a veil before the eyes	
Respiratory passages:	Nose as if stopped, with discharge.	
(Rhinitis)	Epistaxis. Stitches in chest	left,
	in the top of the false ribs. Dyspnoea.	
Heart-circulation:	Palpitation of heart and vessels.	
(Erethism)	Oppression in the heart region	
Digestive organs:	Mouth and tongue dry. Tongue	
(Gastro-enteritis,	thick, yellow coated. The papillae	
with liver involvement)	project themselves through the	
	coating. Loss of appetite.	
	Aversion to smell or sight of food.	
	Coffee tastes sour. Distended abdomen,	
	stomach pains. Lancinating pains in liver	
	region, stitching in spleenic region	

### VACCINOTOXINUM Contd...

Trunk and Joints:	Stiffness, trembling, pains of the	left
(Rheumatism paralysis,	arm. Pain in the <b>wrist joint</b> and hands	
Periarticular rheumatism	as from a warm draft. Feeling of numbness	
of tendons and muscles,	and <b>burning</b> of 4th finger	left
Arthrosis)	BACKACHES, radiating to waist.	
	Sensation of ice water along the back.	
	Legs heavy, painful, as if after severe exertion,	
	difficult to raise.	
	Sensation as if the left thigh torn off, as if the	
	limbs have become short, the bones crushed, broke	en
Sensation of chewing in	Pressive pair	n in the knees.
become short.	the bones; a	s if bones have
Skin:	<b>Dry</b> . BLISTERS and PUSTULES with	
(Herpes, Varicella,	BURNING PAINS. Small nodules and	
Erysipelas, Phlegmone,	pustules, of dark-red colour; round or lengthy	
Acute eczema)	pustules, containing yellowish-green pus, behind	
	the right ear, between the shoulders, on the left	

### VACCINOTOXINUM

Mind and Emotion:	Weepy, bad humour, disturbed because of his		
(Depressive	business. Sulky; Confused; forgetful; RESTLESSNESS		
Psychotics)	IMPATIENT, IRRITABLE. Morbid fear of		
	contracting pox.		
General:	Weak feeling with desire to yawn and		
("Sycotic"	stretch. Children want to be carried.		
Conditions)	Indisposition, jaded SEVERE FATIGUE,		
	with BACK and JOINT PAINS.		
Side affected:			
Thermo-regulation:	FEVER, with extreme <b>heat</b> .		
Disposition to Perspiration:			
Thirst:	Thirst.		
Desire for:	Loss of appetite. Aversion at sight		
	of or smell of food.		
Aversion to:			
Intolerance:			
Stool evacuation:			
Urination:	Increased, diminished.		
(Nephritis, oedema)			
Sleep:	Unrefreshing; wakes with bursting pains		
	in forehead and eyes.		
Dreams:			
Sexuality:			
Menstruation:	Strength: Heavy		

	Duration:	
	Onset: too early	
Leucorrhoea:		
Stool:		
Urine:	Albuminuria, Haematuria	
Perspiration:		
MODALITIES		
Agg:	Morning; by humidity.	
Amel:	Movement. Laterality-left.	
NOSODE	VARIOLINUM	
ORGANOTROPY MEMBRANES of EYEs intestinal canal.	, , , ,	passages, gastro- SKIN. Suppurating tissues.
REGION/AFFECTION	SYMPTOMS AND SENSATION	MODALITIES
Head:	Sensation of a tight band around the	
(Neuralgias)	head. Occipital pains, violent, unbea	rable.
	Benumbed feeling	
Eyes:	Redness and swelling of the lids.	
(Conjunctivitis,	Sees green colour on	looking up.
Keratitis.	Loss of vision	
Chr. Ophthalmia)		
Respiratory passage:	Sensation of <b>obstruction of nose,</b>	
(Rhinitis, purulenta)	with purulent discharge. Throat sens	itive,
	as if constricted, oppression. Lump	

	sensation in the back part of pharynx.	right.
	Cough, with expectoration of thick,	
	lumpy, bloody mucous	
Digestive organs:	Nausea, caused by every	smell.
(Gastro-enteritis)	Taste foul, coppery. Tongue hangs out	
	of mouth during sleep. Vomiting, distention	
	of the abdomen, diarrhoea	
Trunk and Joints:	Sensation as if a thin line of ice-cold water	
(Neuritis, Post-herpetic)	is flowing down the back. Tormenting	
	backaches, in lumbo-sacral region,	
	radiating to the abdomen. Acne of joints,	
	pains <b>in the wrist joints</b>	
Skin:	Red, dry, hot, petechiae.	
(Acne pustulosa,	BLISTERS or PUSTULOUS ERUPTIONS	
Varicella,	with BURNING PAINS	
Herpes Zoster)		

## VARIOLINUM

Mind and Emotion:

Morbid fear of contracting pox.

(Post vaccinal	RESTLESSNESS, irritability, weeping
Conditions, Encephalitis)	
General:	GENERAL EXHAUSTION, WEAKNESS, Vertigo.
(Asthenia)	
Side affected:	(Right)
Thermo-regulation:	HIGH FEVER, with violent radiating heat.
Disposition to Perspiration:	INTENSE PERSPIRATION, of offensive smell.
Thirst:	
Desire for:	Loss of appetite.
Aversion to:	
Intolerance:	
Stool evacuation:	Diarrhoea
Urination:	Bilateral renal pain always accompanied by a dorsal pain.
Sleep:	
Dreams:	
Sexuality:	
Menstruation:	Strength: Metrorrhagia accompanied by lumbar pain.
	Duration:
	Onset:
Leucorrhoea:	
Stool:	Diarrhoeic.
Urine:	
Perspiration:	Offensive.
	MODALITIES
Agg:	Movement.
Amel:	

## PATHOLOGICAL REPERTORY OF THE NOSODES

## (According to O.A. JULIAN)

ABSCESSES	Pyrogenium
ABSCESS OF THE LUNG	Tuberculinum (Bacillinum)
ACETONAEMIA	B. Sycoccus
ACNE	Anthracinum, Psorinum, Tuberculinum
ACNE CONGLOBATA	Tuberculinum (Residuum)
ACNE PUSTULOSA	Variolinum
ACNE ROSACEA	Tuberculinum (Marmorek)
ACROCYANOSIS	B. Morgan, Tuberculinum (Denys, Marmorek)
ADDISON'S DISEASE	Tuberculinum (Bacillinum), Malaria officinalis
ADNEXITIS	Colibacillinum, Medorrhinum, B. Morgan,
	<b>B. Sycoccus</b> Tuberculinum (Bacillinum, Residuum)
ADENOID VEGETATIONS	•
ADENOID VEGETATIONS	Tuberculinum (Bacillinum, Residuum)
ADENOID VEGETATIONS ADYNAMIA, increased susceptibility	Tuberculinum (Bacillinum, Residuum) GONOTOXINUM, Mucor M., Psorinum,
ADYNAMIA, increased	Tuberculinum (Bacillinum, Residuum) GONOTOXINUM, Mucor M., Psorinum, B. Sycoccus, Tuberculinum
ADYNAMIA, increased susceptibility AGEING, premature with memory	Tuberculinum (Bacillinum, Residuum) GONOTOXINUM, Mucor M., Psorinum, B. Sycoccus, Tuberculinum Anthracinum
ADYNAMIA, increased susceptibility AGEING, premature with memory disturbances	Tuberculinum (Bacillinum, Residuum) GONOTOXINUM, Mucor M., Psorinum, B. Sycoccus, Tuberculinum Anthracinum

ALLERGIES	ANAPHYLACTIC LUNG
ALOPECIA	Luesinum, Streptococcinum, Tuberculinum (Bacillinum)
ALTERNATINGLY, symptoms	
appearing	PSORINUM
ΑΝΑΕΜΙΑ	Malaria officinalis, Medorrhinum, MUCOR M, STR-E- COCC, B. Sycoccus, Tuberculinum (Spengler)
ANAL Fissures	Luesinum
ANAL Fistulae	Pyrogenium
ANAL PRURITIS, with worms	Medorrhinum
ANGINA, malignant, Pseudo-	
membrane from beginning, dark;	
no difficulties in swallowing,	
no pains, exhausted state.	DIPHTHEROTOXINUM
ANGINA, chronic	Medorrhinum, PARATYPHOIDINUM B
ANGINA, chronic ANGINA PECTORIS	Medorrhinum, PARATYPHOIDINUM B Luesinum
ANGINA PECTORIS	Luesinum BRUCELLA M., (Vaccinotoxinum)
ANGINA PECTORIS ANOREXIA	Luesinum BRUCELLA M., (Vaccinotoxinum) TUBERCULINUM (BCG, MARMOREK)
ANGINA PECTORIS ANOREXIA ANOREXIA, of infants	Luesinum BRUCELLA M., (Vaccinotoxinum) TUBERCULINUM (BCG, MARMOREK) Anaphylactic lung, TUBERCULINUM (AVIAIRE)
ANGINA PECTORIS ANOREXIA ANOREXIA, of infants APHTHAE APHTHAE, in mouth, with scaly	Luesinum BRUCELLA M., (Vaccinotoxinum) TUBERCULINUM (BCG, MARMOREK) Anaphylactic lung, TUBERCULINUM (AVIAIRE) Psorinum
ANGINA PECTORIS ANOREXIA ANOREXIA, of infants APHTHAE APHTHAE, in mouth, with scaly lips	Luesinum BRUCELLA M., (Vaccinotoxinum) TUBERCULINUM (BCG, MARMOREK) Anaphylactic lung, TUBERCULINUM (AVIAIRE) Psorinum
ANGINA PECTORIS ANOREXIA ANOREXIA, of infants APHTHAE APHTHAE, in mouth, with scaly lips APHTHAE with Gingivitis,	Luesinum BRUCELLA M., (Vaccinotoxinum) TUBERCULINUM (BCG, MARMOREK) Anaphylactic lung, TUBERCULINUM (AVIAIRE) Psorinum MONILIA A
ANGINA PECTORIS ANOREXIA ANOREXIA, of infants APHTHAE APHTHAE, in mouth, with scaly lips APHTHAE with Gingivitis,	Luesinum BRUCELLA M., (Vaccinotoxinum) TUBERCULINUM (BCG, MARMOREK) Anaphylactic lung, TUBERCULINUM (AVIAIRE) Psorinum MONILIA A
ANGINA PECTORIS ANOREXIA ANOREXIA, of infants APHTHAE APHTHAE, in mouth, with scaly lips APHTHAE with Gingivitis, brown tongue, toothache	Luesinum BRUCELLA M., (Vaccinotoxinum) TUBERCULINUM (BCG, MARMOREK) Anaphylactic lung, TUBERCULINUM (AVIAIRE) Psorinum MONILIA A

ARTERIOSCLEROSIS	Luesinum
ARTHROSIS	Tuberculinum (Residuum), Vaccinotoxinum
ARTHROSIS of Knee	Tuberculinum (Bacillinum)
ARTHROSIS of Knees, small joints	B. Morgan
ASTHENIA,	MUCOR M, B. No.7, PENICILLINUM, Scarlatinum, STRE- E-COCC., TUBERCULINUM (AVIAIRE, BCG)
ASTHENIA, Post-infectious	Malaria
ASTHENIA,	
with chronic Hypotension	TUBERCULINUM (BCG)
ASTHMA	ANAPHYLACTIC LUNG, Luesinum, Malleinum, Medorrhinum, PENICILLINUM, Pertussinum, Psorinum, B. Sycoccus, Tuberculinum.
ASTHMA, Humid	Tuberculinum (Bacillinum), Mucor-M
ASTHMA, Infantile with Fever phases	Tuberculinum (Aviaire)
ASTHMA, of plethoric people	Tuberculinum (Denys)
BACK and joint pains	MALARIA
BACK and joint pains,	
with much fatigue	VACCINOTOXINUM
BED-WETTING	Lyssinum, Medorrhinum, Psorinum, Tuberculinum
BLEPHARITIS	Medorrhinum, Psorinum, Tuberculinum, Vaccinotoxinum
BOECK'S disease	Tuberculinum (Marmorek)
BONES, Cysts, Necrosis, Ulcers	Luesinum
BONES AND JOINTS Tuberculosis, fistulating	Tuberculinum
BRAIN AND SPINAL CORD,	
Organotropic Nosodes	Luesinum, Lyssinum, POLIOMYELITIS, Variolinum
BREATH, stinking	DIPHTHEROTOXINUM, MALANDRINUM

BRONCHITIS	Influenzinum, B.Sycoccus, Malaria, Tuberculinum (Marmorek)
BRONCHITIS, Capillary	Tuberculinum
BRONCHITIS, chronic of old people	Diphtherotoxinum
BRONCHITIS, grippal	Tuberculinum (Aviaire)
BRONCHO-PNEUMONIA	Tuberculinum (Marmorek)
BROCHO-PNEUMONIA,	
of children	Tuberculinum (Aviaire)
BRONCHIECTASIS	Psorinum, Tuberculinum (Bacillinum)
CALCIUM DEFICIENCY, with Phosphaturia	MUCOR M
CANCER, old people	B. GAERTNER
CARBUNCLE	Anthracinum
CARDIALGIAS	Luesinum, Streptococcinum
CATATONIA	Colibacillinum, Psorinum
CERVICITIS	Luesinum, Medorrhinum, Psorinum, B.Sycoccus, Tuberculinum
CHARACTER DISORDERS	Medorrhinum
CHARACTER DISORDERS,	
of Children	B.Proteus
CHEST PAINS,	
in Bronchitis and Pleuritis	Tuberculinum
CHILBLAINS	B. Morgan, Tuberculinum (Marmorek)
CHILLY, sensitive to cold	MEDORRHINUM, PSORINUM, TUBERCULINUM, Colibacillinum
CHOLECYSTITIS	
acute	Pyrogenium, Paratyphoidinum B
chronic	B.Morgan, Paratyphoidinum B, Colibacillinum

subacute	Paratyphoidinum BB
CHOLERA INFANTUM	Medorrhinum, Psorinum
CHOLELITHIASIS	B.Morgan
CHOLERIC, aggressive nature	B.Proteus
CICATRISATION, delayed	MALANDRINUM
CIRCULATORY DISTURBANCES,	
Peripheral, Arterial	B.Proteus
COLDS, recurrent	TUBERCULINUM
CONCENTRATION, wanting of	MEDORRHINUM
CONDYLOMA	Medorrhinum, Penicillinum
CONGESTION, of lungs	B.Morgan, Tuberculinum (Aviaire, Marmorek)
CONGESTION, of the mucous	
membranes and organs	B.MORGAN
CONSTIPATION	BRUCELLA M
CONVALESCENCE, delayed	Psorinum
CONVULSIONS, of Children	Medorrhinum, PERTUSSINUM
CONVULSIONS, epileptiform	Lyssinum, Pertussinum, B.Proteus
CORYZA, with copious watery discharge	TUBERCULINUM (DENYS)
COUGH	Leusinum, Lyssinum, Malaria, Medorrhinum, PENICILLINUM, PERTUSSINUM, Psorinum, TUBERCULINUM (AVIAIRE, BACILLINUM), Variolinum
COUGH, acute, loud irritative cough	TUBERCULINUM (AVIAIRE)
COUGH, attacks, spasmodic	
with mucous expectoration	PERTUSSINUM
COUGH, chronic in Winter	Psorinum

COUGH, chronic with

mucopurulent expectoration **TUBERCULINUM (BACILLINUM)** COUGH, dry, asthmatic PENICILLINUM COUGH, nightly Luesinum, Medorrhinum COUGH, spasmodic Lyssinum COX ARTHROSIS Lyssinum CYANOSIS of the face PERTUSSINUM CYSTITIS, acute and chronic Colibacillinum, Enterococcinum, Paratyphoidinum B, B.Proteus, Tuberculinum DAZED CONDITION, with hallucination Medorrhinum **DECUBITUS**, with crust formation Pyrogenium **DELIRIUM**, acute Lyssinum DEMINERALISATION, of Children Psorinum, Tuberculinum DEPRESSION Tuberculinum (Denys), Vaccinotoxinum **DIABETES MELLITUS** Medorrhinum DIARRHOEA, foul smelling Psorinum DIARRHOEA, mornings, bloody with pains in liver and splenic region MALARIA **DIARRHOEA**, stinking PARATYPHOIDINUM B DIARRHOEA, with liquid stinking stools Anthracinum DIGESTION of fat, disordered B. Gaertner DIGESTION, slow COLIBACILLINUM DIGESTIVE DISORDERS TUBERCULINUM (BCG)

DRYNESS of throat with absence of thirst	Anaphylactic lung
DUPUYTREN's contraction	Tuberculinum (Residuum)
DYSENTERY	Lyssinum, Tuberculinum
DYSMENORRHOEA	Luesinum, Medorrhinum, B. Morgan
DYSPEPSIA, nervous	Tuberculinum (Marmorek)
DYSTHYROIDISM	B. No.7
ECLAMPSIA	Lyssinum
ECZEMA (see "eruptions",	
"skin eruptions")	Malandrinum, Medorrhinum, Monilia A.,
	B. Morgan, Penicillinum, Psorinum, Streptococcinum, Str-e-cocc, Tuberculinum, (Denys), Vaccinotoxinum, B. Sycoccus
ECZEMA, acute	Vaccinotoxinum
ECZEMA and Furuncle	PENICILLINUM
ECZEMA, chronic	Monilia A.
ECZEMA, chronic,	
moist particularly after vaccination	Malandrinum
ECZEMA, chronic, of the scalp	Psorinum
ECZEMA, dry, scaling	Streptococcinum
ECZEMA, dry, itching,	
scaling with Fissures	Tuberculinum
ECZEMA, eyelid	TUBERCULINUM (BACILLINUM)
ECZEMA, new born infants	Stre-e-cocc

ECZEMA, of the finger, hands,

popliteal space, axilla, mammae,	
elbow, anal region,	
folds of buttocks	Monilia A
ECZEMA, of infants	B. MORGAN
ECZEMA, of auditory meatus	Tuberculinum (Bacillinum)
ECZEMA, peri-anal, of infants	Medorrhinum
ECZEMA, with linear fissures	
of the skin and folds of	
mucous membrane	MONILIA A
EMACIATION	Paratyphoidinum B, Tuberculinum (Bacillinum)
EMPYEMA	Pyrogenium
ENCEPHALITIS	Pyrogenium
ENCEPHALITIS, post vaccinal	VARIOLINUM
ENCEPHALOPATHY, with feeble-	
mindedness	Pertussinum
ENTERITIS, infectious	Pyrogenium
ENTERITIS, summer	Paratyphoidinum B
ENTEROCOLITIS	Pyrogenium, Tuberculinum (Denys)
ENTEROCOLITIS, haemorrhagic	Eberthinum
EPILEPSY	LUESINUM, Lyssinum, Tuberculinum
EPISTAXIS	Medorrhinum, Tuberculinum
EPISTAXIS, stinking secretion	DIPHTHEROTOXINUM
EROTOMANIA	Lyssinum
ERUPTIONS,	
(see "skin eruptions," eczema)	BRUCELLA M

ERUPTIONS, blisters or pustules,

with burning pains	VACCINOTOXINUM
ERUPTIONS, scalp, itching,	
particularly in evenings	MALANDRINUM
	Anthracinum, Vaccinotoxinum
	Tuberculinum
ERYTHROCYANOSIS,	
of young girls	B. Morgan, Tuberculinum (Marmorek)
EXCICCOSE, Hydropenia	PARATYPHOIDINUM B
EXCITABILITY	BRUCELLA M., LYSSINUM, B. SYCOCCUS,
TUBERCULINUM, VACCINOTOXINU	Μ
EXCITABILITY, easy	TUBERCULINUM
EXHALATIONS, bad	MEDORRHINUM, PSORINUM
,	
EXHAUSTION, mental and physical	B. No.7
	B. No.7
	B. No.7
EXHAUSTION, mental and physical	B. No.7 EBERTHINUM
EXHAUSTION, mental and physical EXHAUSTION,	
EXHAUSTION, mental and physical EXHAUSTION, with profuse diarrhoea	EBERTHINUM
EXHAUSTION, mental and physical EXHAUSTION, with profuse diarrhoea EXHAUSTION, with restlessness	EBERTHINUM PYROGENIUM
EXHAUSTION, mental and physical EXHAUSTION, with profuse diarrhoea EXHAUSTION, with restlessness EXOSTOSIS	EBERTHINUM PYROGENIUM Luesinum, MALANDRINUM
EXHAUSTION, mental and physical EXHAUSTION, with profuse diarrhoea EXHAUSTION, with restlessness EXOSTOSIS EYES, chronic	EBERTHINUM PYROGENIUM Luesinum, MALANDRINUM Luesinum, MORBILLINUM,
EXHAUSTION, mental and physical EXHAUSTION, with profuse diarrhoea EXHAUSTION, with restlessness EXOSTOSIS EYES, chronic (Conjunctival inflammation)	EBERTHINUM PYROGENIUM Luesinum, MALANDRINUM Luesinum, MORBILLINUM, Psorinum, VACCINOTOXINUM
EXHAUSTION, mental and physical EXHAUSTION, with profuse diarrhoea EXHAUSTION, with restlessness EXOSTOSIS EYES, chronic (Conjunctival inflammation) EYES, Organotropic Nosode	EBERTHINUM PYROGENIUM Luesinum, MALANDRINUM Luesinum, MORBILLINUM, Psorinum, VACCINOTOXINUM Diphtherococcinum, Gonococcinum, Herpes-virus
EXHAUSTION, mental and physical EXHAUSTION, with profuse diarrhoea EXHAUSTION, with restlessness EXOSTOSIS EYES, chronic (Conjunctival inflammation) EYES, Organotropic Nosode FACIAL paresis, after chilling	EBERTHINUM PYROGENIUM Luesinum, MALANDRINUM Luesinum, MORBILLINUM, Psorinum, VACCINOTOXINUM Diphtherococcinum, Gonococcinum, Herpes-virus Botulinum, Luesinum
EXHAUSTION, mental and physical EXHAUSTION, with profuse diarrhoea EXHAUSTION, with restlessness EXOSTOSIS EYES, chronic (Conjunctival inflammation) EYES, Organotropic Nosode FACIAL paresis, after chilling FAINTING SPELLS	EBERTHINUM PYROGENIUM Luesinum, MALANDRINUM Luesinum, MORBILLINUM, Psorinum, VACCINOTOXINUM Diphtherococcinum, Gonococcinum, Herpes-virus Botulinum, Luesinum

FEVER	Anthracinum, BRUCELLA M, MALARIA, PARATYPHOIDINUM B, PENICILLINUM, STR-E-COCC, TUBERCULINUM (BCG, DENYS) VACCINOTOXINUM, VARIOLINUM
FEVER-ATTACKS	STR-E-COCC
FEVER-ATTACKS from least exertion	TUBERCULINUM (DENYS)
FEVER, light, of short duration	TUBERCULINUM (BCG)
FEVER, subacute, protracted	Paratyphoidinum B
FEVER, sub-febrile, chilly, asthenic	PENICILLINUM
FEVER, with anxiety and delirium	Anthracinum
FEVER, with chilly feeling,	
then heat and copious perspiration	MALARIA
FEVER, with much perspiration,	
from exertion; nights	Variolinum, BRUCELLA M
FIBROMA	Luesinum
FURUNCLE	Anthracinum, Malandrinum, Penicillinum, Psorinum, Pyrogenium, STAPHYLOCOCCINUM
GASTRITIS	Medorrhinum, Monilia A., Tuberculinum (Denys)
GASTRO-ENTERITIS, acute	Anthracinum, Paratyphoidinum BB, Pyrogenium
GASTRO-ENTERITIS, chronic	Colibacillinum
GASTRO-ENTERITIS, of children	B.Sycoccus
GINGIVITIS	Monilia, Str-e-cocc, Tuberculinum
GINGIVITIS, with aphthae,	
brown tongue, toothaches	PENICILLINUM
GLANDS, hypertrophy GLANDS, hypertrophy of the	TUBERCULINUM (AVIAIRE, BCG)

mediastinal glands	TUBERCULINUM (BCG)
GLANDS, inflammed, septic	TUBERCULINUM (BCG)
GLANDS, inflammation during dentition	Mucor M
GLANDS, inflammation	
of the parotid gland and maxillaris	Anthracinum
GLANDS, of the throat swollen	DIPHTHEROTOXINUM
GLANDS, Lymphadenopathy	Luesinum, Streptococcinum, TUBERCULINUM (BCG)
GLANDS, Organotropic Nosodes	LUESINUM, STREPTOCOCCINUM, TUBERCULINUM
GOUT	Medorrhinum
GRIPPE	INFLUENZINUM, Pyrogenium, Str-e-cocc, Tuberculinum (Aviaire)
GRIPPE, with moderate	
fever and high grade weakness	INFLUENZINUM
GRIPPE, gastrointestinal	Pyrogenium
GROWTH DISTURBANCES,	
stunted growth	B. GAERTNER, Tuberculinum (Bacillinum)
HAEMORRHOIDS	LUESINUM, B. Morgan
HASTINESS, with twitching	
in legs and burning in heels	MEDORRHINUM
HAY-FEVER	Psorinum, Tuberculinum
HEADACHES	BRUCELLA M., B.Dysenteriae, INFLUENZINUM, Luesinum, Lyssinum, MALANDRINUM, MALARIA, Medorrhinum, B. Morgan, STREPTOCOCCINUM,

	B.Sycoccus, TUBERCULINUM (Aviaire, BACILLINUM, Marmorek), Vaccinotoxinum
HEADACHES, chronic	Lyssinum, Tuberculinum (Marmorek)
HEADACHES, congestive	B. Morgan
HEADACHES, deep-seated, worse	5
from movement	TUBERCULINUM (BACILLINUM)
HEADACHES, occipital, with band	
sensation	Variolinum
	varionnum
HEADACHES, occipital, with pale	
appearance	MALANDRINUM
HEADACHES, occipital,	
with vertigo and indisposition	MALARIA
HEADACHES, of students	B. Sycoccus, Tuberculinum (Bacillinum)
HEADACHES, periodical	B. Dysenteriae
HEADACHES, with chills,	
muscle and joint pains	INFLUENZINUM
HEADACHES, with ill humour and	
hallucinations of sight and hearing	STREPTOCOCCINUM
HEART ailments, after rheumatism	Medorrhinum
HEART DISORDERS,	DIPHTHEROTOXINUM, LUESINUM
Endo-Myocarditis	STREPTOCOCCINUM
(heart valve affection)	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	

## HEART DISORDERS,

with slow pulse	EBERTHINUM
HEART NEUROSIS	Tuberculinum
HEART, of old age	Tuberculinum
HEART, Organotropic Nosodes	DIPHTHEROTOXINUM, LUESINUM, STREPTOCOCCINUM
HEART TONE, weak, arrhythmias	PARATYPHOIDINUM B
HEAT SENSATION, retrosternal	Anaphylactic lung
HEEL PAIN	Medorrhinum
HEPATITIS, chronic	Tuberculinum
HEPATOCHOLITIS	Malaria
HERPES	Luesinum, B.Proteus
HERPES, of eyelids	Tuberculinum
HERPES SIMPLEX	Luesinum, Vaccinotoxinum
HERPES TONSURANS	Tuberculinum
HERPES ZOSTER	Vaccinotoxinum, Variolinum
HOARSENESS	Diphtherotoxinum
HUNGER, gluttonous	MEDORRHINUM, PSORINUM
HYDROCELE	Tuberculinum
HYDROCEPHALUS	Tuberculinum (Bacillinum)
HYDROPHOBIA	Lyssinum
HYPERSENSITIVITY,	
sensorial, with physical,	
breakdown, particularly in children	B. Gaertner
HYPERTENSION	Luesinum
HYPOCHONDRIACAL	Malaria
HYPOMENORRHOEA	Penicillinum

HYPOTENSION	Psorinum, Tuberculinum (Denys, Marmorek)
HYPOTHYROID	Psorinum, B. No. 7.
HYSTERIA	B.Proteus, TUBERCULINUM
IMPATIENCE	MEDORRHINUM, VACCINOTOXINUM
IMPETIGO	Malandrinum, Monilia A., Psorinum, STAPHYLOCOCCINUM, TUBERCULINUM (Bacillinum, Marmorek)
IMPOTENCE, premature senility	B. No.7, Luesinum, Medorrhinum
INCONSTANCY,	
changeableness of the symptoms	TUBERCULINUM
INCONSTANCY, mental	Tuberculinum (Bacillinum)
INCONTINENCE	Luesinum, Lyssinum
INFLAMMATION, after immune vaccination	Tuberculinum
INFLAMMATION, indurated,	
blue-violet, vesicles, ulcers	ANTHRACINUM
INSTABILITY, emotional	BRUCELLA
INSTABILTY,	
emotional and character	
disturbances, vicious, fits of rage	
of children	Luesinum
INTERTRIGO	Monilia A
INTESTINAL haemorrhages	EBERTHINUM
INTESTINES, Organotropic	Colibacillinum, Enterococcinum, Paratyphoidinum
Nosodes	B, B. Proteus, Tuberculinum
IRITIS	Luesinum, Tuberculinum, Vaccinotoxinum

KELOID	Luesinum
KELOIDS, in the vaccinated spots	Vaccinotoxinum
KERATITIS	Luesinum, Tuberculinum, Vaccinotoxinum
KIDNEY stones	Colibacillinum, B. Morgan
LARYNGITIS, chronic	Gonotoxinum, Influenzinum, Luesinum, Tuberculinum (Marmorek)
LARYNGITIS, spastic	Medorrhinum, Pertussinum
LARYNGITIS, tuberculosa	Tuberculinum (Bacillinum)
LASSITUDE, excessive	TUBERCULINUM (SPENGLER)
LEUCORRHOEA	Anaphylactic lung, Medorrhinum
LIBIDO, loss of	Psorinum
LICHEN PLANUS	Luesinum
LIPOID NEPHROSIS	Penicillinum
LIVER AND SPLEEN, affections	Malaria
LIVER INSUFFICIENCY	Medorrhinum, B. Sycoccus
LUMBAGO	Lyssinum
LUMBAR region, pain in	MALANDRINUM
LUNG, apex of, pains in	TUBERCULINUM (AVIAIRE)
LUPUS, Erythematosis	Tuberculinum (Marmorek)
LUXATIONS, relapsing	Psorinum
LYMPHOMA-GRANULOSAE,	
inguinal	Luesinum
MALTA fever, chronic	Brucella M., Malaria
MANIC states	B. Proteus
MARASMUS, chronic,	
after Salmonella infection previously	PARATYPHOIDINUM B
MASK like face MASTITIS	BOTULINUM Tuberculinum

MASTURBATION MEASLES MEASLES, with lung complication	Medorrhinum Influenzinum, MORBILLINUM Tuberculinum (Aviaire)
MELANCHOLY	Colibacillinum, PSORINUM, TUBERCULINUM
MEMORY DISTURBANCES,	
mixes up words, with asthenia,	
oppression, irritability	COLIBACILLINUM
MEMORY, loss of especially	
for one's own name,	
poor in calculation, in mathematics	LUESINUM
MEMORY, weakness,	
cannot remember that	
which he experienced just before	MEDORRHINUM
MENIERE's disease	Tuberculinum, B. Morgan
MENINGES, Organotropic Nosodes	MENINGOCOCCINUM, TUBERCULINUM
MENINGITIS	Influenzinum, MENINGOCOCCINUM, Pyrogenium
MENSES, elevation of temperature before	TUBERCULINUM (SPENGLER)
METEORISM	BOTULINUM
METRITIS	Colibacillinum, Medorrhinum, Psorinum, Tuberculinum
MIGRAINE	Medorrhinum, B. Morgan, Psorinum, STR-E-COCC, TUBERCULINUM (DENYS)
MIGRAINE menstrual	B. Morgan
MIGRAINE, periodical	Tuberculinum

MUCOUS MEMBRANE,

irritation of the mucous membranes	
and synovial membranes	B.SYCOCCUS
MUSCLE spasms	B. Proteus
NAILBITING	Medorrhinum
NEPHRITIS, Albuminuria	Penicillinum, Pyrogenium, Scarlatinum
NEPHRITIS, Albuminuria and Haematuria	Tuberculinum
NEPHRITIS, post vaccinal,	
with Albuminuria and Oedema	Vaccinotoxinum
NEURALGIA	LUESINUM, Medorrhinum, Psorinum
NEURASTHENIA	Brucella M., Colibacillinum, MEDORRHINUM, Psorinum, Tuberculinum
NEURITIS	Malaria, Medorrhinum, VARIOLINUM
NIGHT TERRORS	B. Sycoccus, Tuberculinum
NOSE, Furuncle, relapsing	Tuberculinum
NOSE, Organotropic Nosodes	Diphtherotoxinum, STAPHYLOCOCCINUM
NOSE, Ozaena Tuberculinum	Gonotoxinum, Luesinum, Malandrinum, Str-e-cocc,
NOSE, Polyps	Gonotoxinum
NUTRITIONAL DISORDERS,	
Coeliac disease	B. GAERTNER
OBSTIPATION Psorinum, Tuberculinum (Marmore	B. Gaertner, Luesinum, Medorrhinum, B. Morgan, k)

ODSTIDATION AL	
OBSTIPATION, Atonic	B. Gaertner, Psorinum
OBSTIPATION, chronic	Luesinum
OBSTIPATION, spastic	Tuberculinum (Marmorek)
OBSTIPATION, with clayey stools	Medorrhinum
OBSTIPATION, with painful	
sensitivity, of the caecal region	Monilia A
OCCUPIED, continuous urge to be	Anaphylactic lung
OEDEMA, with Albuminuria	PENICILLINUM
OEDEMA, Angioneurotic	B. Proteus
OEDEMA, chronic, joints of the	
lower extremities	Brucella M., OURALINUM
ONYCHORRHEXIS (brittleness of	
nails due to longitudinal fissures)	Luesinum, Tuberculinum
OPPRESSION	PERTUSSINUM
OPPRESSION OPPRESSION,	PERTUSSINUM
	PERTUSSINUM B. DYSENTERIAE
OPPRESSION,	
OPPRESSION, with anxiety before events	B. DYSENTERIAE
OPPRESSION, with anxiety before events OPHTHALMIA	B. DYSENTERIAE Medorrhinum, Psorinum
OPPRESSION, with anxiety before events OPHTHALMIA ORCHITIS AND EPIDIDYMITIS	B. DYSENTERIAE Medorrhinum, Psorinum
OPPRESSION, with anxiety before events OPHTHALMIA ORCHITIS AND EPIDIDYMITIS OSTEOCHONDROSIS juveniles	B. DYSENTERIAE Medorrhinum, Psorinum Brucella M., OURLIANUM
OPPRESSION, with anxiety before events OPHTHALMIA ORCHITIS AND EPIDIDYMITIS OSTEOCHONDROSIS juveniles dorsi (Scheuermann's disease)	B. DYSENTERIAE Medorrhinum, Psorinum Brucella M., OURLIANUM Luesinum, Tuberculinum
OPPRESSION, with anxiety before events OPHTHALMIA ORCHITIS AND EPIDIDYMITIS OSTEOCHONDROSIS juveniles dorsi (Scheuermann's disease) OSTEOMYELITIS	B. DYSENTERIAE Medorrhinum, Psorinum Brucella M., OURLIANUM Luesinum, Tuberculinum STAPHYLOCOCCINUM
OPPRESSION, with anxiety before events OPHTHALMIA ORCHITIS AND EPIDIDYMITIS OSTEOCHONDROSIS juveniles dorsi (Scheuermann's disease) OSTEOMYELITIS OSTEOMYELITIS, chronic	B. DYSENTERIAE Medorrhinum, Psorinum Brucella M., OURLIANUM Luesinum, Tuberculinum STAPHYLOCOCCINUM Tuberculinum
OPPRESSION, with anxiety before events OPHTHALMIA ORCHITIS AND EPIDIDYMITIS OSTEOCHONDROSIS juveniles dorsi (Scheuermann's disease) OSTEOMYELITIS OSTEOMYELITIS, chronic	B. DYSENTERIAE Medorrhinum, Psorinum Brucella M., OURLIANUM Luesinum, Tuberculinum STAPHYLOCOCCINUM Tuberculinum Mucor M

OXYURIA	B. Gaertner
PAINS, burning of vertebral column and joints	MEDORRHINUM
PAINS, burning intensive	ANTHRACINUM
PAINS, in the wrist joints and	
aches of joints	Variolinum
PAINS, lightning like	PENICILLINUM
PAINS, of back and joints with	
much tiresomeness	MALARIA, VACCINOTOXINUM
PAINS, of joints and muscles	PENICILLINUM
PAINS, of joints, worse while	
at rest, not affected by	
atmospheric variations	TUBERCULINUM (RESIDUUM)
PAINS, of joints and muscles	
of the lower extremities	BRUCELLA - M
PAINS, particularly at nights, slowly	
increasing and slowly decreasing	
of the bones	LUESINUM
PALLOR, exhaustion	MALARIA
PALLOR, of the skin and mucous membrane	TUBERCULINUM (SPENGLER)
PALLOR, perspiration hydropenia	PARATYPHOIDINUM B
PALMS pain and heat in the ears	TUBERCULINUM (AVIAIRE)
PANARITIUM	Anthracinum, Pyrogenium STAPHYLOCOCCINUM
PARALYSIS	Luesinum
PARALYSIS, Atony	Diphtherotoxinum
PARALYSIS, Diphtheritic	Botulinum, Diphtherotoxinum

PARALYSIS, of the Vocal Cord	Diphtherotoxinum
PARALYSIS, of walking, speech,	
respiration	BOTULINUM
PARALYSIS, rheumatic	Vaccinotoxinum
PARASITES, chronic, intestinal	Tuberculinum
PARESIS, of the joints of lower extremities	Tuberculinum
PAROTITIS, epidemica	OURLIANUM
PEMPHIGUS	Luesinum
PERIARTHRITIS, Humero-scapularis	Medorrhinum
PERIODICITY, with agg. in Autumn	
and Spring	MUCOR-M
PERITONITIS	Tuberculinum (Marmorek)
PERITONITIS, fibrous adhesive	Tuberculinum (Residuum)
PERSPIRATION, nightly	TUBERCULINUM
PERSPIRATION, smelling like fish	Medorrhinum
PERSPIRATION, stinking	PSORINUM
PHLEGMON	Pyrogenium, STAPHYLOCOCCINUM
PHLEGMON, connective tissues	Vaccinotoxinum
PHLEGMON, gangrenous	Anthracinum
PITYRIASIS, Rosea and Versicolor	Tuberculinum (Bacillinum, Marmorek)
PLEURITIS, sicca and exudativa,	
relapsing	Tuberculinum (Marmorek), TUBERCULINUM (BCG)
PNEUMONIA, grippal	Tuberculinum (Aviaire)
POISONING from Shellfish, Mussels	Paratyphoidinum B
POLIOMYELITIS	Botulinum
POLYARTHRITIS	Botulinum

POLYARTHRITIS, beginning	Penicillinum
POLYARTHRITIS, sub-acute	
(see "Rheumatism")	Brucella M
POLYPS of Uterus	Medorrhinum
POX VACCINATION, desensiti-	
zation of ill effects after	
Pox vaccination	Malandrinum, Vaccinotoxinum
POX VACCINATION,	
retarded state, after	VARIOLINUM
PREGNANCY, vomiting of	Medorrhinum, Psorinum
PROSTATE Adenoma	Medorrhinum
PROSTATITIS	Colibacillinum, Medorrhinum, Tuberculinum
PRURITIS Analis	B. Morgan
PSORIASIS	Psorinum, Tuberculinum
PSYCHOPATHY in Colibacillosis	Paratyphoidinum B
PSYCHOTICS, Depressive	B. Morgan, Tuberculinum
PSYCHOTICS, Manic	Anaphylactic lung, Tuberculinum
PSYCHOTICS, Psychopaths,	
suicides	LUESINUM
PTOSIS, of the lids	Luesinum, BOTULINUM
PULMONARY Sclerosis	Tuberculinum (Residuum)
PULSE and temperature,	
divergence of	PYROGENIUM
PUSTULES, malignant	Malandrinum
PYLOROSPASMS	B. Dysenteriae
RAYNAUD'S Disease	B.Proteus
REACTION power, poor	PSORINUM

RECTO-COLITIS, haemorrhagic	Luesinum, Tuberculinum
REFLUX through the nose, of	
what was drunk	BOTULINUM, DIPHTHEROTOXINUM
RESISTANCE, very low	TUBERCULINUM (AVIAIRE)
RESPIRATION, accelerated	PERTUSSINUM
RESPIRATION, weak, with hacking	
explosive cough	MALARIA
RESTLESSNESS, cannot sit still	B.DYSENTRIAE, VACCINOTOXINUM
RESTLESSNESS, weeping,	
crying, anguish	PERTUSSINUM
RESTLESSNESS, with exhaustion	PYROGENIUM, Variolinum
RETARDED development,	
of children	Medorrhinum
RHEUMATISM	Brucella M., Colibacillinum, GONOCOCCINUM, LUESINUM, Malaria, MEDORRHINUM, PENICILLINUM, Psorinum, Scarlatinum, STREPTOCOCCINUM, Str-e- cocc, B. Sycoccus, TUBERCULINUM (BCG, DENYS, Marmorek, RESIDUUM), Vaccinotoxinum.
RHINITIS, chronic Tuberculinum (Denys)	LUESINUM, Malaria, MEDORRHINUM, PENICILLINUM, Psorinum, Scarlatinum, STREPTOCOCCINUM, Str-e- cocc, B. Sycoccus, TUBERCULINUM (BCG, DENYS,
RHINITIS, chronic	LUESINUM, Malaria, MEDORRHINUM, PENICILLINUM, Psorinum, Scarlatinum, STREPTOCOCCINUM, Str-e- cocc, B. Sycoccus, TUBERCULINUM (BCG, DENYS, Marmorek, RESIDUUM), Vaccinotoxinum.
RHINITIS, chronic Tuberculinum (Denys)	LUESINUM, Malaria, MEDORRHINUM, PENICILLINUM, Psorinum, Scarlatinum, STREPTOCOCCINUM, Str-e- cocc, B. Sycoccus, TUBERCULINUM (BCG, DENYS, Marmorek, RESIDUUM), Vaccinotoxinum. Malleinum, Medorrhinum, Psorinum,
RHINITIS, chronic Tuberculinum (Denys) RHINITIS, purulent	LUESINUM, Malaria, MEDORRHINUM, PENICILLINUM, Psorinum, Scarlatinum, STREPTOCOCCINUM, Str-e- cocc, B. Sycoccus, TUBERCULINUM (BCG, DENYS, Marmorek, RESIDUUM), Vaccinotoxinum. Malleinum, Medorrhinum, Psorinum, Str-e-cocc., Vaccinotoxinum
RHINITIS, chronic Tuberculinum (Denys) RHINITIS, purulent RHINITIS, spasmodic	LUESINUM, Malaria, MEDORRHINUM, PENICILLINUM, Psorinum, Scarlatinum, STREPTOCOCCINUM, Str-e- cocc, B. Sycoccus, TUBERCULINUM (BCG, DENYS, Marmorek, RESIDUUM), Vaccinotoxinum. Malleinum, Medorrhinum, Psorinum, Str-e-cocc., Vaccinotoxinum Mucor M., Pollen
RHINITIS, chronic Tuberculinum (Denys) RHINITIS, purulent RHINITIS, spasmodic RICKETS	LUESINUM, Malaria, MEDORRHINUM, PENICILLINUM, Psorinum, Scarlatinum, STREPTOCOCCINUM, Str-e- cocc, B. Sycoccus, TUBERCULINUM (BCG, DENYS, Marmorek, RESIDUUM), Vaccinotoxinum. Malleinum, Medorrhinum, Psorinum, Str-e-cocc., Vaccinotoxinum Mucor M., Pollen Medorrhinum, Tuberculinum (Bacillinum)
RHINITIS, chronic Tuberculinum (Denys) RHINITIS, purulent RHINITIS, spasmodic RICKETS SADNESS, with inferiority complex	LUESINUM, Malaria, MEDORRHINUM, PENICILLINUM, Psorinum, Scarlatinum, STREPTOCOCCINUM, Str-e- cocc, B. Sycoccus, TUBERCULINUM (BCG, DENYS, Marmorek, RESIDUUM), Vaccinotoxinum. Malleinum, Medorrhinum, Psorinum, Str-e-cocc., Vaccinotoxinum Mucor M., Pollen Medorrhinum, Tuberculinum (Bacillinum) PSORINUM
RHINITIS, chronic Tuberculinum (Denys) RHINITIS, purulent RHINITIS, spasmodic RICKETS SADNESS, with inferiority complex SALIVATION SCALES, (see "Eruptions,"	LUESINUM, Malaria, MEDORRHINUM, PENICILLINUM, Psorinum, Scarlatinum, STREPTOCOCCINUM, Str-e- cocc, B. Sycoccus, TUBERCULINUM (BCG, DENYS, Marmorek, RESIDUUM), Vaccinotoxinum. Malleinum, Medorrhinum, Psorinum, Str-e-cocc., Vaccinotoxinum Mucor M., Pollen Medorrhinum, Tuberculinum (Bacillinum) PSORINUM Luesinum, Lyssinum

SCHIZOPHRENIA	Colibacillinum
SCROFULOSIS	MALLEINUM, Tuberculinum (Bacillinum)
SCURVY	Tuberculinum
SEBORRHOEA	Psorinum
SECRETIONS, acrid,	rsonnum
Fish-brine odour	MEDORRHINUM
SECRETIONS, acrid, stinking	ANTHRACINUM
SECRETIONS, bad-smelling with	
tendency to develop into Ulcers	LUESINUM
SECRETIONS, stinking	PYROGENIUM
SEES double (Diplopia)	BOTULINUM, Luesinum, Medorrhinum
SENSITIVITY, to noise, light,	
_	
drafts of air	STREPTOCOCCINUM
SEPSIS	Anthracinum, Pyrogenium
SEXUAL excitement	Lyssinum
SHATTERED, washed out feeling,	
with perspiration, thirst	INFLUENZINUM
SINUSITIS	Influenzinum
SINUSITIS, chronic	Mucor M., Str-e-cocc
SIT-STILL, cannot	TUBERCULINUM (BACILLINUM)
SKIN, alterations (Dermatosis) after antibiotic therapy	MONILIA A
SKIN, and appendages,	
hair and nails, dry	MUCOR M
SKIN, and mucous membranes, dry	TUBERCULINUM (MARMOREK)

SKIN, chapped from Washing

or Cold weather	MALANDRINUM
SKIN, dry, desquamating, itching	MALANDRINUM
SKIN, Eruptions (see Eruptions "Eczema")	BRUCELLA M., LUESINUM, MALANDRINUM, MONILIA A., B. MORGAN, PSORINUM, STAPHYLOCOCCINUM, TUBERCULINUM (BCG), VACCINOTOXINUM.
SKIN ERUPTIONS, chronic,	
worse in cold, but itching more	
in warmth of bed	PSORINUM
SKIN, Eruptions, with Liver disorders, Gall stones, Migraine	B. MORGAN
SKIN, Organotropic Nosodes	Luesinum, Staphylococcinum
SLEEP, less need to, without	
symptoms of fatigue	Anaphylactic lung
SLEEP, restless, tossing about	MALARIA
SLEEPLESSNESS	BRUCELLA M., Colibacillinum, LUESINUM, Malaria, Medorrhinum, STR-E-COCC., Tuberculinum.
SLEEPLESSNESS of Children MARMOREK)	TUBERCULINUM (BACILLINUM,
SLEEPINESS, persistent	MENINGOCOCCINUM
SOMNAMBULISM	Lyssinum
SPASMS, of the Digestive and Urinary tracts	LYSSINUM
SPASMS, of vessels of the Gastro-intestinal canal	B. DYSENTERIAE
SPLEEN, enlargement	Malaria
SPONDYLARTHRITIS	Tuberculinum (Residuum)
SPRAINS, recurring	Psorinum, Tuberculinum

STENOSIS, of the Rectum	Luesinum
STERILITY	Luesinum, Tuberculinum (Residuum)
STOMACH ailments - pains	BOTULINUM, TUBERCULINUM (DENYS)
STOMACH Ulcers	B. Dysenteriae, B. Proteus, Tuberculinum
STOMATITIS	Monilia A., Psorinum
STRABISMUS	Luesinum
STYES, frequent	Tuberculinum
SUDDENLY appearing functional	
or organic disturbances	TUBERCULINUM (DENYS)
SUNSTROKE	Lyssinum
SUPPURATION, chronic	MALANDRINUM
SWALLOWING, disturbances of	BOTULINUM, Lyssinum
SWELLING of the eyelids	Variolinum
SWELLING	
of the upper Eyelids, one-sided	COLIBACILLLINUM
of the upper Eyelids, one-sided TABES	COLIBACILLLINUM Luesinum
TABES	Luesinum
TABES TALKING, very hurried	Luesinum
TABES TALKING, very hurried TASTE like pepper; desire for	Luesinum LYSSINUM
TABES TALKING, very hurried TASTE like pepper; desire for cold things, sour things	Luesinum LYSSINUM MALARIA
TABES TALKING, very hurried TASTE like pepper; desire for cold things, sour things TEETH-CARIES	Luesinum LYSSINUM MALARIA
TABES TALKING, very hurried TASTE like pepper; desire for cold things, sour things TEETH-CARIES TEETHING, in infants, complicated	Luesinum LYSSINUM MALARIA
TABES TALKING, very hurried TASTE like pepper; desire for cold things, sour things TEETH-CARIES TEETHING, in infants, complicated with Rhinopharyngitis, Otitis,	Luesinum LYSSINUM MALARIA Luesinum, Tuberculinum (Bacillinum)
TABES TALKING, very hurried TASTE like pepper; desire for cold things, sour things TEETH-CARIES TEETHING, in infants, complicated with Rhinopharyngitis, Otitis, Skin diseases	Luesinum LYSSINUM MALARIA Luesinum, Tuberculinum (Bacillinum)
TABES TALKING, very hurried TASTE like pepper; desire for cold things, sour things TEETH-CARIES TEETHING, in infants, complicated with Rhinopharyngitis, Otitis, Skin diseases TEETHING, late	Luesinum LYSSINUM MALARIA Luesinum, Tuberculinum (Bacillinum) Str-e-cocc Tuberculinum
TABES TALKING, very hurried TASTE like pepper; desire for cold things, sour things TEETH-CARIES TEETHING, in infants, complicated with Rhinopharyngitis, Otitis, Skin diseases TEETHING, late THIRST, burning	Luesinum LYSSINUM MALARIA Luesinum, Tuberculinum (Bacillinum) Str-e-cocc Tuberculinum Botulinum

TIMIDITY	Colibacillinum, B. Dysenteriae
TISSUE CHANGES, fibrous,	
in Arteries, Joints, Lungs,	
serous coats, skin	TUBERCULINUM (Residuum)
TOES, skin fissured, itching,	
Interdigital	MALANDRINUM
TONSILS, hypertrophy Tuberculinum (BCG)	Luesinum, Medorrhinum, Mucor M, B. Sycoccus,
TONSILS, Organotropic Nosodes	Meningococcinum, STREPTOCOCCINUM
TONSILS, Phlegmonous	Mucor M
TOOTHACHE	Lyssinum
TOOTHACHES, consequent to	
demineralisation	Tuberculinum (Marmorek)
TOOTHACHES, with Gingivitis,	
Aphthae	PENICILLINUM
TOOTH, neck of teeth lying exposed	Psorinum
TOXICOSIS, of Infants	Malaria, Paratyphoidinum B., Pyrogenium
TUBERCULOSIS,	
fibrous in plethorics	Tuberculinum (Denys)
TUBERCULOSIS, intestinal	Tuberculinum (Bacillinum)
TUMOURS, benign	Penicillinum
TUMOURS, pedunculated	Medorrhinum
ULCERS, chronic	Psorinum
UNDERNOURISHED	Tuberculinum (Bacillinum)
URAEMIA, chronic	Botulinum
URETHRITIS	B. Sycoccus, Psorinum
URINE and stool retention	BOTULINUM

URINARY disturbances, Spastics	Lyssinum
URINATION, frequent	
urging painful, burning	COLIBACILLINUM
URINE, Albuminuria in children	B. Sycoccus
URINE, Albuminuria with Oedema	PENICILLINUM
URINE, chronic Albuminuria	Enterococcinum
URINE, cloudy, bad smelling	COLIBACILLINUM
URINE, cloudy, containing Acetones	
and Uric acid	MALANDRINUM
URO-GENITAL SYSTEM,	Colibacillinum, Enterococcinum,
Organotropic Nosodes	GONOCOCCINUM, B. Morgan, B. Proteus
URTICARIA	Medorrhinum, Penicillinum
VAGINISMUS	Lyssinum, Medorrhinum
VAGINITIS	Medorrhinum
VAGINITIS, atrophic	Luesinum
VARICELLA	B. Sycoccus, VARIOLINUM
VARICES	B. Morgan
VEGETATIVE dystonia,	
with anxiety, chilliness	MUCOR M
VERTIGO	BRUCELLA M., Medorrhinum, B. Proteus,
	STR-E-COCC., Variolinum
VOLKMANN'S SYNDROME	
(Ischaemic muscle contracture)	Tuberculinum (Residuum)
VULVA, Eczema	Monilia A

VULVO-VAGINITIS	Medorrhinum, MONILIA A
WARTS	B. Sycoccus, Medorrhinum, Penicillinum
WASHES the hands frequently, as if	
obsessed, fears mental derangement	LUESINUM
WASTING AWAY, thinning away	BRUCELLA M., MUCOR M, Paratyphoidinum B,
	STR-E-COCC., TUBERCULINUM
	(AVIAIRE, Bacillinum, BCG, MARMOREK)
WEAKNESS, extreme	PSORINUM
WEAKNESS, feeling, mornings	Anaphylactic lung
WOUNDS, old, delayed cicatrisation	MALANDRINUM